
     MEMORANDUM

To:  Members of the Commission    

From:  Nancy Wittenberg
  Executive Director

Date:  January 31, 2019 

Subject: Summary of the February 8, 2019 Meeting Packet

Minutes

The January 11, 2019 Commission Meeting minutes and attachments are included in your packet. 

Public Development Applications

The following public development applications are being recommended for approval with conditions: 

1. Application Number 2015-0066.003/Camden County Department of Public Works, 
Winslow Township, Forest Area, Improvements to the existing New Brooklyn Lake Dam.

2. Application Number 2018-0098.001/Cape May County, Borough of Woodbine, Pinelands 
Town Management Area, Road improvements to Dehirsch Avenue. 

Waiver of Strict Compliance

One Amended Waiver of Strict Compliance application is being recommended for approval with 
conditions.  This application proposes the development of one single family dwelling. 

Letter of Interpretation

Two Pinelands Development Credit (PDC) Letters of Interpretation (attached) were issued since the last 
Commission meeting, allocating 2.0 PDCs to 74.94 acres. 

Off-Road Vehicle Event Route Map Approval

No Off-Road Vehicle Event Route Map Approvals were issued since the last Commission meeting



2 
 

Planning Matters 
 
Ordinances from Stafford and Winslow Townships are being recommended for certification at this 
month’s meeting.  Stafford Township Ordinance 2018-19 revises the standards applicable to planned 
unit developments in the Highway Medical Commercial Zone, which is located in the Regional Growth 
Area.  Winslow Township Ordinance O-2018-025 adopts a redevelopment plan for the Maressa 
Redevelopment Area, which is comprised of four lots in the Regional Growth Area.  
 
We are also recommending adoption of an amendment to the Pinelands Infrastructure Master Plan. This 
amendment represents the first step in awarding the approximately $15 million currently available in the 
Pinelands Infrastructure Trust Fund. The amendment creates a framework for ranking new infrastructure 
projects and establishes a funding structure for such projects.  Following adoption of the amendment, we 
anticipate issuing a Request for Proposals by mid-March 2019. A second Master Plan amendment that 
includes a list of specific projects will then be prepared and provided to the Commission for 
consideration.  
    
Master Plans and Ordinances Not Requiring Commission Action 
 
We have included a memorandum on 14 master plan and ordinance amendments that we reviewed and 
found to raise no substantial issues with respect to Comprehensive Management Plan standards. These 
amendments were submitted by Egg Harbor City, Egg Harbor Township, Evesham Township, 
Manchester Township, Medford Lakes Borough, Stafford Township, Upper Township and Wrightstown 
Borough. 
 
Other Items 
 
Also included in this month’s packet is:  
 

1. A list of pending Public Development and Waiver of Strict Compliance Applications for which 
public comment will be accepted at the February 8, 2019 Commission meeting. 

 
Closed Session 
 
The Commission may need to convene into closed session. 
 
Please note that future meetings and office closure dates, as well as any Pinelands-related activities of 
interest, are listed at the bottom of the agenda.        
 
/ PC1 



NEW JERSEY PINELANDS COMMISSION MEETING AGENDA
Friday, February 8, 2019 

Richard J. Sullivan Center for Environmental Policy and Education 
Terrence D. Moore Conference Room

15C Springfield Road  
New Lisbon, New Jersey 

9:30 a.m.    
1. Call to Order

 Open Public Meetings Act Statement 
 Roll Call 
 Pledge Allegiance to the Flag

2. Adoption of Minutes  

 January 11, 2019   

3.  Committee Chairs' and Executive Director's Reports 

4.  Matters for Commission Consideration Where the Record is Closed

A. Permitting Matters

 Office of Administrative Law 

• None 

 Review of Local Approval  

• None 

 Public Development Projects and Waivers of Strict Compliance 

• Approving With Conditions an Application for Public Development 
(Application Number 2015-0066.003) (improvements to the New Brooklyn 
Lake Dam in Winslow Township) 

• Approving With Conditions an Application for Public Development 
(Application Number 2018-0098.001) (road improvements to the Dehirsch 
Avenue right-of-way in the Borough of Woodbine) 



2 
 

 
• Approving With Conditions an Application for an Amended Waiver of Strict 

Compliance (Application Number 1987-0127.001) (development of a single 
family dwelling in Jackson Township) 

 
B.      Planning Matters 

 
 Municipal Master Plans and Ordinances  

 
• Issuing an Order to Certify Ordinance 2018-19, Amending Chapter 211 

(Zoning) of the Code of Stafford Township 
 

• Issuing an Order to Certify Winslow Township Ordinance O-2018-025, 
Adopting the Maressa Redevelopment Plan 

 
 Other Resolutions 

 
• To Adopt an Amendment to the Pinelands Infrastructure Master Plan 

 
 CMP Amendments  

 
• None 

     
5.   Public Comment on Public Development Applications and Waivers of Strict Compliance (see 

attached list) and Resolutions Where the Record is Not Closed (to ensure adequate time for all 
members of the public to comment, we will respectfully limit comments to three (3) minutes.  
Questions raised during this period may not be responded to at this time but where feasible, will 
be followed up by the Commission and its staff.) 

 
    6.    Master Plans and Ordinances Not Requiring Commission Action 
 

 Egg Harbor City Ordinance 15-2018 
 Egg Harbor Township Planning Board Resolution HE/FS 01-18 and Ordinance 51-

2018 
 Evesham Township Planning Board Resolution 18-15 and Ordinance 25-12-2018 
 Manchester Township Ordinance 18-34 
 Medford Lakes Borough Ordinance 657 
 Stafford Township Ordinances 2018-23, 2018-24, 2018-26, 2018-28, 2018-29 and 

2018-31 
 Upper Township Planning Board Resolution 05-2018 and Ordinance 019-2018 
 Wrightstown Borough Ordinance 2018-09 

 
 7.   Update on Wharton State Forest 
 

  8. General Public Comment (to ensure adequate time for all members of the public to comment, we 
will respectfully limit comments to three (3) minutes.  Questions raised during this period may not 
be responded to at this time but where feasible, will be followed up by the Commission and its 
staff.) 

 



3 
 

    9.  Resolution to Retire into Closed Session (if needed) – Personnel, Litigation and Acquisition                             
Matters (The Commission reserves the right to reconvene into public session to take action on 
closed session items.) 

 
     10.  Adjournment 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Pinelands Commission and Committee meeting agendas are posted on the Commission’s Web site and can be viewed at 
www.nj.gov/pinelands/.  The agendas are also posted and can be viewed at the Pinelands Commission Offices, 15 Springfield 
Road, New Lisbon, New Jersey or for more information on agenda details, e-mail the Public Programs Office  at 
Info@pinelands.nj.gov or call (609) 894-7300. 

Upcoming Meetings 
 Unless otherwise noted, all meetings/events are conducted at the  

offices of the Pinelands Commission in New Lisbon 
 

Fri., February 22, 2019           Policy and Implementation Committee Meeting (9:30 a.m.) 
Fri., March 8, 2019              Pinelands Commission Meeting (9:30 a.m.) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
   
 
 
 
 
 

Upcoming Office Closures 
      
        Mon., February 18, 2019     Presidents Day 
         
 

http://www.nj.gov/pinelands/
mailto:info@njpines.state.nj.us
mailto:Info@pinelands.nj.gov


PC2-1 
 

                                                                            
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
PINELANDS COMMISSION MEETING 

Richard J. Sullivan Center 
Terrence D. Moore Conference Room 

15 Springfield Road 
New Lisbon, New Jersey 

 
MINUTES 

 
January 11, 2019 

 
 

Commissioners Present  
Alan W. Avery Jr., Bob Barr, Jordan P. Howell, Jane Jannarone, Ed Lloyd, Mark 
Lohbauer, William Pikolycky, Richard Prickett, Gary Quinn, and Chairman Sean Earlen.  
Also present were Executive Director Nancy Wittenberg, Governor’s Authorities Unit 
representative Craig Ambrose and Deputy Attorney General (DAG) Kristina Miles.  
 
Commissioners by Phone 
D’Arcy Rohan Green. 
 
Commissioners Absent 
Candace Ashmun, Giuseppe Chila, Paul E. Galletta. 
 
Chairman Earlen called the meeting to order at 9:33 a.m.   
 
DAG Miles read the Open Public Meetings Act Statement (OPMA). 
 
Executive Director Nancy Wittenberg called the roll and announced the presence of a 
quorum.  (There were 11 Commissioners who participated in the meeting.) 
 
The Commission and public in attendance pledged allegiance to the Flag. 
 
  



PC2-2 
 

Minutes 
Chairman Earlen presented the minutes from the December 14, 2018 Commission meeting.  
Commissioner Prickett moved the adoption of the minutes.  Commissioner Pikolycky 
seconded the motion.   
 
The December 14, 2018 Commission meeting minutes were adopted by a vote of 8 to 0, 
with Commissioner Barr and Commissioner Quinn abstaining.  Commissioner Lohbauer 
was not present for the vote. 
  
Chairman Earlen presented the closed session minutes from the November 9, 2018 
Commission meeting.  Commissioner Barr moved the adoption of the minutes.  
Commissioner Avery seconded the motion.   
 
The November 9, 2018 closed session Commission meeting minutes were adopted by a 
vote of 8 to 0, with Commissioner Howell and Commissioner Quinn abstaining from the 
vote.  Commissioner Lohbauer was not present for the vote. 
 
Committee Chairs' Reports 
Chairman Earlen said there were no Committee meetings to report on.  He said the next 
Policy and Implementation Committee meeting is scheduled for January 25, 2019. 
 
Executive Director’s Reports 

ED Wittenberg updated the Commission on the following items: 
• A meeting that was being scheduled with National Park Service representative 

Jonathan Meade has been temporarily placed on hold due to the federal government 
shutdown. 

• Additional work on the visitor center was necessary based on the last construction 
inspection.  It’s very close to being complete. 

• A stay request was received for the New Jersey Natural Gas (NJNG) Southern 
Reliability Link project.  The Commissioners were provided with a copy earlier this 
week and were informed it might be discussed at today’s meeting.  NJNG’s 
response to the stay request was also received.  The Attorney General’s office has 
completed its legal review, however Ms. Roth has been out of the office and has not 
had a chance to review the guidance for procedural accuracy. The Commission will 
be discussing the matter at a later date. 

 
Commissioner Prickett asked if the Commission would need to vote on a resolution 
regarding the stay request. 
 
ED Wittenberg said the Commission would need to take action by resolution on the stay 
request. 

 
Director Chuck Horner provided information on the following regulatory matters: 

• Staff met with Medford Township officials regarding the construction of a new 
municipal building. 



PC2-3 
 

• A meeting has been scheduled with Lacey Township and Ocean County officials 
regarding site improvements at a shooting range in Lacey. 

• Staff is working with the Mayor of Estell Manor on some issues in the city, 
specifically a matter that involves recreational vehicles. 

 
ED Wittenberg added that staff is still trying to find a meeting date for the new Committee 
that will address energy and sustainability. 
 
Chief Planner Susan R. Grogan updated the Commission on the following: 

• Staff held a public hearing on amendments to the Pinelands Infrastructure Trust 
Fund Master Plan on January 3, 2019.  Only two members of the public attended 
the hearing and a total of five written comments were received.  Staff is preparing 
the final amendment for the full Commission to vote on in February. 

• The Commission’s archaeologist, Tony McNichol, is currently preparing for an 
excavation at the Brotherton Indian Reservation in the Indian Mills section of 
Shamong Township.   Mr. McNichol has been assisting in ground penetrating radar 
surveys to determine the boundary of the actual site of the excavation.  The 
Archaeological Society of New Jersey will be conducting the excavation and the 
results of the dig will be shared at a future Commission meeting. 

 
Commissioner Prickett asked how the excavation project came to fruition. 
 
Chief Planner Grogan said Mr. McNichol knew of the site and during the Township’s 
application for the new cemetery, the concept for an excavation at Brotherton was 
discussed.  She said Shamong Township owns the property. 
 
Communications Director Paul Leakan said the electrical work was completed for the 
visitor center.  Once the Certificate of Occupancy is issued, the building can be re-opened 
for normal business.  He said the 30th Annual Pinelands Short Course will be held on 
March 9, 2019.  He said there will be 36 presentations, four of which will be conducted by 
Pinelands Commission staff. 
 
Public Development Projects and Other Permit Matters 

Chairman Earlen presented a resolution recommending approval of two public 
development applications.  He said one is for the installation of a traffic control system in 
Hamilton and Egg Harbor Townships and the other is for the installation of potable water 
and sanitary sewer mains in Medford Township. 
 
Commissioner Barr moved the adoption of a resolution Approving With Conditions 
Applications for Public Development (Application Numbers 2017-0052.001 & 2018-
0096.001) (See Resolution # PC4-19-01).  Commissioner Jannarone seconded the motion. 
 
The Commission adopted the resolution by a vote of 10 to 0.  Commissioner Lohbauer was 
not present for the vote. 
 



PC2-4 
 

Chairman Earlen presented a resolution for the construction of a roundabout (traffic circle) 
at the existing County Route 550 and 610 intersection in Woodbine Borough. 
 
Commissioner Pikolycky said he would be recusing from the vote on this application and 
left the dais. 
 
Commissioner Prickett moved the adoption of a resolution Approving With Conditions an 
Application for Public Development (Application Number 2018-0148.001) (See Resolution 
# PC4-19-02).  Commissioner Barr seconded the motion. 
 
The Commission adopted the resolution by a vote of 9 to 0.  Commissioner Lohbauer was 
not present for the vote. 
 
Commissioner Pikolycky returned to the meeting. 
 
Commissioner Lohbauer joined the meeting at 9:51 a.m. 
 
Public Comment on Public Development Applications and Items where the record is open 
No one from the public spoke. 
 
Ordinances Not Requiring Commission Action 
Chairman Earlen asked if any Commissioners had questions regarding the ordinances not 
requiring Commission action: 
 

 Hammonton Town 2018 Housing Element and Fair Share Plan 
 Hammonton Town Ordinances 031-2018 and 045-2018 
 Maurice River Township Ordinance 677 
 Shamong Township Ordinance 2018-13 
 Southampton Township Ordinance 2018-13 
 Winslow Township Ordinance O-2018-024 

 
No members of the Commission had questions. 
 
Other Resolutions 

Chairman Earlen presented a resolution accepting the Fiscal Year 2017 audit report. 
 
Commissioner Avery moved the adoption of a resolution To Accept the Fiscal Year 2017 
Audit Report (See Resolution # PC4-19-03).  Commissioner Lloyd seconded the motion. 

Commissioner Avery said he is pleased to announce that there were no findings in the FY 
2017 Audit. He said both the Audit Committee and Personnel and Budget Committee 
recommended purchasing new accounting software. He said in addition the Commission 
staff has made some internal changes and the combination has resulted in a clean audit.  He 
thanked the members of the Audit Committee including the two public members: Brian 
Logan and Mike Mansdoerfer.  He also thanked former Commissioner McGlinchey for his 
role on the Audit Committee. 



PC2-5 
 

 
The Commission adopted the resolution by a vote of 11 to 0. 
 
Commissioner Rohan Green left the meeting at 9:57 a.m. 
 
Presentation: Buena Borough Municipal Utilities Authority (MUA) Water Pollution 
Control Plant 
 
Mr. Ed Wengrowski outlined the history that lead to the construction of a state of the art 
wastewater treatment plant in Buena Borough.  He said water quality in a Pinelands stream 
improved significantly by upgrading the plant through an amendment to an existing 
Memorandum of Agreement between the Pinelands Commission, Buena Borough MUA 
and Buena Vista Township. 
 
Mr. Wengrowski introduced Dennis Yoder, the Director of Engineering at Remington & 
Vernick Engineers and Mr. Alan Zorzi, Plant Superintendent.   Mr. Yoder and Mr. Zorzi 
shared aerial photographs of the plant and described the membrane bioreactor technology 
(MBR) used to transform the wastewater.  In addition, Mr. Yoder and Mr. Zorzi provided 
details of how the plant achieved 24 consecutive months of maintaining certain discharge 
limits with abnormally cold temperatures.   A few Commissioners asked questions related 
to the following topics: cost of the plant, temperature spikes and other plants using the 
MBR technology.  See attached slides for additional information.                                                                                                       
 
General Public Comment 
Paula Yudkowitz said the public cannot access the center of the Pinelands and families are 
unable to recreate because of damaged roads surrounding Wharton State Forest.  She also 
said that things are getting “scary” and “iffy”  “down there”.  She said “bands of big men in 
big trucks are threatening people in the woods”.  She said she would like the Commission 
to add these issues to its monthly agenda.                                                                                 
 
Rhyan Grech of the Pinelands Preservation Alliance said the Alliance recently released the 
2018 Annual State of the Pinelands Report. She brought copies of the report for 
Commissioners and the public.   She congratulated the Commission on its Roadside Best 
Management Practices, the Pinelands Science report and the Short Course. She said the 
Commission needs to move forward with the following: Pinelands Development Credit 
Amendments, CMP amendments to address the Kirkwood-Cohansey aquifer and 
amendments to protect the Black Run Watershed. 
 
Debra Smith of Southampton said she feels the Commission is headed in the wrong 
direction and would like to see new Commissioners appointed who are more conservation 
minded. 
 
Agnes Marsala of Chesterfield urged Commissioners to adopt a resolution to grant the stay 
for the NJNG pipeline.  She said she was also urging the Burlington County Board of 
Freeholders to replace its representative on this Commission.   
 



PC2-6 
 

Margo Pellegrino of Medford Lakes said she was pleased to hear that the Commission 
created a new Committee to address the effects of climate change in the Pinelands. She said 
she was impressed with the Buena Borough treatment plant and hopes that the Commission 
will receive a lot of press on the success of the facility. 
 
Fred Akers of the Great Egg Harbor Watershed Association said the Buena MOA is a good 
example of how the MOA process should work. He thanked Commissioner Pikolycky for 
his resolution through the League of Municipalities supporting the Payment in Lieu of 
Taxes (PILOT) program. 
 
Commissioner Earlen responded to Ms. Yudkowitz’s comments about Wharton State 
Forest and road access.  He said staff will have a conversation with the New Jersey 
Department of Environmental Protection (NJDEP) about the issues she raised. 
 
Commissioner Prickett asked ED Wittenberg if she could research whether it is appropriate 
for the Commission to draft a resolution supporting the PILOT program. 
 
Commissioner Lohbauer requested an update from the Executive Director at the next 
Commission meeting regarding the status of the NJDEP’s application to clear trees 
surrounding the Bass River Fire Tower. 

Adjournment 
 
Commissioner Lohbauer moved to adjourn the meeting.  Commissioner Pikolycky 
seconded the motion.  The Commission agreed to adjourn at 11:33 a.m.    
 
Certified as true and correct: 
 
_________________________________   Date: January 18, 2019 
Jessica Noble, Executive Assistant 







 

!20170052.001! 

       December 20, 2018 

 

Brendan Brock (via email) 

New Jersey Department of Transportation 

951 Parkway Ave. 

Trenton, NJ 08625 

 

 Re: Application # 2017-0052.001 

  U.S. Routes 40 & 322 

  Egg Harbor and Hamilton Townships 

 

Dear Mr. Brock: 

 

The Commission staff has completed its review of this application for the installation of a traffic control 

system within the combined U.S. Route 40/322 right-of-way in Hamilton and Egg Harbor Townships. 

Enclosed is a copy of a Public Development Application Report.  On behalf of the Commission’s 

Executive Director, I am recommending that the Pinelands Commission approve the application with 

conditions at its January 11, 2019 meeting.  

 

Any interested party may appeal this recommendation in accordance with the appeal procedure attached 

to this document. If no appeal is received, the Pinelands Commission may either approve the 

recommendation of the Executive Director or refer the application to the New Jersey Office of 

Administrative Law for a hearing. 

 

Prior to any development, the applicant shall obtain any other necessary permits and approvals. 

 

 Sincerely, 

 

 

 

 Charles M. Horner, P.P. 

 Director of Regulatory Programs 

Enc: Appeal Procedure 

c: Secretary, Egg Harbor Township Planning Board (via email) 

 Egg Harbor Township Construction Code Official (via email) 

 Egg Harbor Township Environmental Commission (via email) 

 Secretary, Hamilton Township Planning Board (via email) 

 Hamilton Township Construction Code Official (via email) 

 Atlantic County Department of Regional Planning and Development (via email) 

 Amanda Mendoza (via email) 



 

 

PUBLIC DEVELOPMENT APPLICATION REPORT 

 

       December 20, 2018 

Brendan Brock (via email) 

New Jersey Department of Transportation 

951 Parkway Ave. 

Trenton, NJ 08625 

 

Application No.: 2017-0052.001 

   U.S. Routes 40 & 322 

   Egg Harbor and Hamilton Townships 

 

This application proposes the installation of a traffic control system within the combined U.S. Route 

40/322 right-of-way in Hamilton and Egg Harbor Townships.   

 

The proposed development includes the installation of 14 traffic detectors and four camera surveillance 

systems mounted on 16 poles. The poles are up to 25 feet in height. The proposed detectors and cameras 

will be located along a six mile stretch of the combined U.S. Route 40/322 right-of-way between the 

Garden State Parkway and the intersection of U.S. Route 40 with U. S. Route 322. The proposed 

development will be connected to the New Jersey statewide communication network by a proposed fiber 

optic communication line along the road right-of-way. The system will be utilized by the New Jersey 

Department of Transportation to improve traffic flow and safety at existing signalized intersections.  

 

STANDARDS 

 

The Commission staff has reviewed the proposed development for consistency with all standards of the 

Pinelands Comprehensive Management Plan (CMP). The following reviews the CMP standards that are 

relevant to this application:   

 

Land Use (N.J.A.C. 7:50-5.28(a)) 

 

The proposed development is located in a Pinelands Regional Growth Area. The proposed development 

is a permitted land use in a Pinelands Regional Growth Area. 

 

Wetlands Standards (N.J.A.C. 7:50-6.6 & 6.13) 

 

There are wetlands located within 300 feet of the proposed development. No development is proposed in 

wetlands. The CMP requires up to a 300 foot buffer to wetlands.  Sections of the underground fiber optic 

communication line will be located within the required buffer to wetlands.      

 



2 

The CMP permits linear improvements (fiber optic communications lines) in the required buffer to 

wetlands provided the applicant demonstrates that certain conditions are met. The applicant has 

demonstrated that there is no feasible alternative to the proposed development that does not involve 

development in wetland buffers or that will result in a less significant adverse impact to wetland buffers.  

In addition, the proposed development will not result in a substantial impairment of the resources of the 

Pinelands.  With the conditions below, all practical measures are being taken to mitigate the impact on 

the wetland buffers.  The applicant has indicated that the proposed development will improve traffic 

safety and reduce traffic congestion.  The applicant has demonstrated that the need for the proposed 

development overrides the importance of protecting the wetland buffer. 

 

Vegetation Management Standards (N.J.A.C. 7:50-6.23 & 6.26) 

 

The proposed development will be located within existing paved areas and maintained grass shoulders. 

The proposed soil disturbance is limited to that which is necessary to accommodate the proposed 

development. 

 

The Landscaping and Revegetation guidelines of the CMP recommend the use of grasses that are 

tolerant of droughty, nutrient poor conditions.  To stabilize disturbed areas, the applicant proposes to 

utilize a seed mixture which meets that recommendation. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

The CMP defines the proposed traffic control system as “minor” development.  The CMP does not 

require public notice for minor public development applications.  The application was designated as 

complete on the Commission’s website on December 3, 2018. The Commission’s public comment 

period closed on December 14, 2018.  No public comment was submitted to the Commission regarding 

this application.  

 

CONDITIONS 

 

1. Except as modified by the below conditions, the proposed development shall adhere to 

the plan, consisting of 36 sheets, prepared by WSP USA Inc. and dated as follows: 

 

Sheet 1 - November 29, 2018 

Sheets 2-36 - November 28, 2018 

2. Except as modified by the below conditions, the proposed development shall adhere to 

the plan, consisting of 50 sheets, prepared by Advantage Engineering Associates, P.C., all 

sheets dated November 24, 2018. 

3. Except as modified by the below conditions, the proposed development shall adhere to 

the plan, consisting of four sheets, prepared by Greenman-Pedersen, Inc., all sheets dated 

July 14, 2018. 

 

4. Disposal of any construction debris or excess fill may only occur at an appropriately 

licensed facility. 

5. Any proposed revegetation shall adhere to the "Vegetation" standards of the CMP.  

Where appropriate, the applicant is encouraged to utilize the following Pinelands native 

grasses for revegetation: Switch grass, Little bluestem and Broom-sedge. 



3 

6. Prior to any development, the applicant shall obtain any other necessary permits and 

approvals. 

7. Appropriate measures shall be taken during construction to preclude sedimentation from 

entering wetlands and shall be maintained in place until all development has been 

completed and the area has been stabilized. 

CONCLUSION 

 

As the proposed development conforms to the standards set forth in N.J.A.C. 7:50-4.57, it is 

recommended that the Pinelands Commission APPROVE the proposed development subject to the 

above conditions. 

 



 

 

PINELANDS COMMISSION 

APPEAL PROCEDURE 
 

The Pinelands Comprehensive Management Plan (N.J.A.C. 7:50-4.91) provides an interested party the 

right to appeal any determination made the by Executive Director to the Commission in accordance with 

N.J.A.C. 7:50-4.91. An interested party is someone who has a specific property interest sufficient to 

require a hearing on constitutional or statutory grounds. Only appeal requests submitted by someone 

meeting the definition of an interested party will be transmitted to the New Jersey Office of 

Administrative Law for a hearing. Any such appeal must be made in writing to the Commission and 

received at the Commission office no later than 4:00 PM on January 7, 2019 and include the following 

information: 

 

1. the name and address of the person requesting the appeal; 

 

2. the application number; 

 

3. the date on which the determination to be appealed was made; 

 

4. a brief statement of the basis for the appeal; and 

 

5. a certificate of service (a notarized statement) indicating that service of the notice has 

been made, by certified mail, on the clerk of the county, municipal planning board and 

environmental commission with jurisdiction over the property which is subject of this 

decision. 

 

Within 15 days following receipt of a notice of valid appeal, the Executive Director shall initiate the 

procedures for assignment of an Administrative Law Judge to preside at the hearing pursuant to the 

Administrative Procedures Act, N.J.S.A. 52:14B-1 et seq., and the procedures established by the Office 

of Administrative Law.  The time, date and location of such hearing shall be designated by the Office of 

Administrative Law. 

 



 

!20180096.001! 

       December 20, 2018 

 

Kathy Burger, Township Manager (via email) 

Medford Township 

17 North Main Street 

Medford, NJ 08055 

 

 Re: Application # 2018-0096.001 
  New Jersey State Highway Route 70 & Medford-Evesboro Road 

  Medford Township 

 

Dear Ms. Burger: 

 

The Commission staff has completed its review of this application for the installation of potable water 

and sanitary sewer mains within the Route 70 & Medford-Evesboro Road rights-of-way. Enclosed is a 

copy of a Public Development Application Report.  On behalf of the Commission’s Executive Director, 

I am recommending that the Pinelands Commission approve the application with conditions at its 

January 11, 2019 meeting. 

 

Any interested party may appeal this recommendation in accordance with the appeal procedure attached 

to this document. If no appeal is received, the Pinelands Commission may either approve the 

recommendation of the Executive Director or refer the application to the New Jersey Office of 

Administrative Law for a hearing. 

 

Prior to any development, the applicant shall obtain any other necessary permits and approvals. 

 

 Sincerely, 

 

 

 

 Charles M. Horner, P.P. 

 Director of Regulatory Programs 

 

Enc: Appeal Procedure 

 

c: Secretary, Medford Township Planning Board (via email) 

 Medford Township Construction Code Official (via email) 

 Medford Township Environmental Commission (via email) 

 Secretary, Burlington County Planning Board (via email) 

 Christopher J. Noll, PE (via email) 



 

 

PUBLIC DEVELOPMENT APPLICATION REPORT 

 

       December 20, 2018 

 

Kathy Burger, Township Manager (via email) 

Medford Township 

17 North Main Street 

Medford, NJ 08055 

 

Application No.: 2018-0096.001 
   New Jersey State Highway Route 70 & Medford-Evesboro Road 

   Medford Township 

 

This application proposes the installation of 735 linear feet of potable water main and 1,690 linear feet 

of sanitary sewer main within the Route 70 & Medford-Evesboro Road rights-of-way located in 

Medford Township.   

 

STANDARDS 

 

The Commission staff has reviewed the proposed development for consistency with all standards of the 

Pinelands Comprehensive Management Plan (CMP). The following reviews the CMP standards that are 

relevant to this application:   

 

Land Use (N.J.A.C. 7:50-5.28(a)) 

 

The proposed development is located in a Pinelands Regional Growth Area.  The proposed utility mains 

are a permitted land use in a Pinelands Regional Growth Area. 

 

Wetlands Standards (N.J.A.C. 7:50-6.6 & 6.13) 

 

There are wetlands located within the project area. The CMP prohibits most development in wetlands 

and requires a buffer of up to 300 feet to wetlands. 

 

The proposed sanitary sewer line will disturb approximately two square feet of wetlands located 

immediately adjacent to State Route 70. The proposed sanitary sewer line will be located in the required 

buffer to that wetland. The CMP permits the installation of linear improvement (utility mains) in 

wetlands and the required buffer to wetlands provided the applicant demonstrates that certain CMP 

specified conditions are met. The applicant has demonstrated that there is no feasible alternative to the 

proposed development that does not involve development in wetlands and the required buffer to 

wetlands or that will result in a less significant adverse impact to wetlands and the required buffer to 

wetlands.  In addition, the proposed development will not result in a substantial impairment of the 



2 

resources of the Pinelands.  With the conditions below, all practical measures are being taken to mitigate 

the impact on the wetlands and the required buffer to wetlands.  The applicant had demonstrated that the 

need for the proposed development overrides the importance of protecting the wetlands. 

 

Vegetation Management Standards (N.J.A.C. 7:50-6.23 & 6.26) 

 

The proposed development will be located within existing agricultural fields, maintained grassed areas, 

and wooded areas. Approximately 0.056 acres of forest will be cleared to accommodate the proposed 

development.  The proposed clearing and soil disturbance is limited to that which is necessary to 

accommodate the development.  

 

The Landscaping and Revegetation guidelines of the CMP recommend the use of grasses that are 

tolerant of droughty, nutrient poor conditions.  The applicant proposes to utilize a seed mixture which 

meets that recommendation. 

 

Cultural Resource Standards (N.J.A.C. 7:50-6.151) 

 

The Commission staff reviewed the application for evidence of cultural resources on the parcel. Based 

upon the lack of potential for significant cultural resources on the parcel, a cultural resource survey was 

not required. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

The applicant has provided the requisite public notices. Newspaper public notice was completed on 

August 7, 2018. The application was designated as complete on the Commission’s website on November 

5, 2018. The Commission’s public comment period closed on December 14, 2018.  No public comment 

was submitted to the Commission regarding this application.  

 

CONDITIONS 

 

1. Except as modified by the below conditions, the proposed development shall adhere to 

the plan, consisting of five sheets, prepared by Environmental Resolutions, Inc. and dated 

as follows: 

 

Sheet 1 - May 30, 2018 

Sheets 2-5 - May 30, 2018; revised to September 4, 2018 

2. Disposal of any construction debris or excess fill may only occur at an appropriately 

licensed facility. 

3. Any proposed revegetation shall adhere to the "Vegetation" standards of the CMP.  

Where appropriate, the applicant is encouraged to utilize the following Pinelands native 

grasses for revegetation: Switch grass, Little bluestem and Broom-sedge. 

4. Prior to any development, the applicant shall obtain any other necessary permits and 

approvals. 

5. Prior to the construction of any portion of the proposed development which will result in 

the disturbance of any wetland area, a Freshwater Wetland Permit shall be obtained 

pursuant to the New Jersey Freshwater Wetlands Protection Act. 



3 

6. Appropriate measures shall be taken during construction to preclude sedimentation from 

entering wetlands and shall be maintained in place until all development has been 

completed and the area has been stabilized. 

CONCLUSION 

 

As the proposed development conforms to the standards set forth in N.J.A.C. 7:50-4.57, it is 

recommended that the Pinelands Commission APPROVE the proposed development subject to the 

above conditions. 

 



 

 

PINELANDS COMMISSION 

APPEAL PROCEDURE 
 

The Pinelands Comprehensive Management Plan (N.J.A.C. 7:50-4.91) provides an interested party the 

right to appeal any determination made the by Executive Director to the Commission in accordance with 

N.J.A.C. 7:50-4.91. An interested party is someone who has a specific property interest sufficient to 

require a hearing on constitutional or statutory grounds. Only appeal requests submitted by someone 

meeting the definition of an interested party will be transmitted to the New Jersey Office of 

Administrative Law for a hearing. Any such appeal must be made in writing to the Commission and 

received at the Commission office no later than 4:00 PM on January 7, 2019 and include the following 

information: 

 

1. the name and address of the person requesting the appeal; 

 

2. the application number; 

 

3. the date on which the determination to be appealed was made; 

 

4. a brief statement of the basis for the appeal; and 

 

5. a certificate of service (a notarized statement) indicating that service of the notice has 

been made, by certified mail, on the clerk of the county, municipal planning board and 

environmental commission with jurisdiction over the property which is subject of this 

decision. 

 

Within 15 days following receipt of a notice of valid appeal, the Executive Director shall initiate the 

procedures for assignment of an Administrative Law Judge to preside at the hearing pursuant to the 

Administrative Procedures Act, N.J.S.A. 52:14B-1 et seq., and the procedures established by the Office 

of Administrative Law.  The time, date and location of such hearing shall be designated by the Office of 

Administrative Law. 

 





 

!20180148.001! 

       December 20, 2018 

 

Elizabeth Bozzelli (via email) 

Cape May County 

4 Moore Road - DN 402 

Cape May Court House, NJ 08210 

 

 Re: Application # 2018-0148.001 

  Cape May County Routes 550 & 610 

  Borough of Woodbine 

 

Dear Ms. Bozzelli: 

 

The Commission staff has completed its review of this application for construction of a roundabout 

(traffic circle) at the existing County Route 550 and 610 intersection. Enclosed is a copy of a Public 

Development Application Report.  On behalf of the Commission’s Executive Director, I am 

recommending that the Pinelands Commission approve the application with conditions at its January 11, 

2019 meeting. 

 

Any interested party may appeal this recommendation in accordance with the appeal procedure attached 

to this document. If no appeal is received, the Pinelands Commission may either approve the 

recommendation of the Executive Director or refer the application to the New Jersey Office of 

Administrative Law for a hearing. 

 

Prior to any development, the applicant shall obtain any other necessary permits and approvals. 

 

 Sincerely, 

 

 

 

 Charles M. Horner, P.P. 

 Director of Regulatory Programs 

 

Enc: Appeal Procedure 

 

c: Secretary, Borough of Woodbine Planning Board (via email) 

 Borough of Woodbine Construction Code Official (via email) 

 Secretary, Cape May County Planning Board (via email) 

 Bradley Tombs (via email) 

  



 

 

PUBLIC DEVELOPMENT APPLICATION REPORT 

 

       December 20, 2018 

 

Elizabeth Bozzelli (via email) 

Cape May County 

4 Moore Road - DN 402 

Cape May Court House, NJ 08210 

 

Application No.: 2018-0148.001 

   Cape May County Routes 550 & 610 

   Borough of Woodbine 

 

This application proposes construction of a roundabout (traffic circle) at the existing County Route 550 

and 610 intersection in the Borough of Woodbine.   

 

The existing intersection is a four-way stop intersection with right-hand turn ramps.  The applicant 

proposes to eliminate the four-way stop intersection and construct a roundabout to improve vehicular 

movement.  

 

STANDARDS 

 

The Commission staff has reviewed the proposed development for consistency with all standards of the 

Pinelands Comprehensive Management Plan (CMP). The following reviews the CMP standards that are 

relevant to this application:   

 

Land Use (N.J.A.C. 7:50-5.27(a)1) 

 

The proposed development is located in the Pinelands Town of Woodbine.  The proposed roadway 

improvements are a permitted land use in a Pinelands Town. 

 

Vegetation Management Standards (N.J.A.C. 7:50-6.23 & 6.26) 

 

The proposed development will be located over existing pavement and within maintain grassed 

shoulders. The proposed soil disturbance is limited to that which is necessary to accommodate the 

proposed development. 

 

The Landscaping and Revegetation guidelines of the CMP recommend the use of grasses that are 

tolerant of droughty, nutrient poor conditions.  To stabilize disturbed areas, the applicant proposes to 

utilize a seed mixture which meets that recommendation. 

 



2 

Stormwater Management Standards (N.J.A.C.7:50-6.84(a)6) 

 

The proposed development will result in a reduction of 8,965 square feet of impervious surfaces. The 

applicant has demonstrated that there will be no increase in the volume and rate of stormwater runoff 

from the project after the development then occurred prior to the proposed development. 

 

Cultural Resource Standards (N.J.A.C. 7:50-6.151) 

 

The Commission staff reviewed the application for evidence of cultural resources on the parcel. Based 

upon the lack of potential for significant cultural resources on within the proposed project area, a 

cultural resource survey was not required. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

The applicant has provided the requisite public notice. Newspaper public notice was completed on 

September 7, 2018. The application was designated as complete on the Commission’s website on 

November 21, 2018. The Commission’s public comment period closed on December 14, 2018. No 

public comment was submitted to the Commission regarding this application.  

 

CONDITIONS 

 

1. Except as modified by the below conditions, the proposed development shall adhere to 

the plan, consisting of three sheets, prepared by Urban Engineers, Inc., all sheets dated 

September 14, 2018. 

2. Disposal of any construction debris or excess fill may only occur at an appropriately 

licensed facility. 

3. Any proposed revegetation shall adhere to the "Vegetation" standards of the CMP.  

Where appropriate, the applicant is encouraged to utilize the following Pinelands native 

grasses for revegetation: Switch grass, Little bluestem and Broom-sedge. 

4. Prior to any development, the applicant shall obtain any other necessary permits and 

approvals. 

CONCLUSION 

 

As the proposed development conforms to the standards set forth in N.J.A.C. 7:50-4.57, it is 

recommended that the Pinelands Commission APPROVE the proposed development subject to the 

above conditions. 

 



 

 

PINELANDS COMMISSION 

APPEAL PROCEDURE 
 

The Pinelands Comprehensive Management Plan (N.J.A.C. 7:50-4.91) provides an interested party the 

right to appeal any determination made the by Executive Director to the Commission in accordance with 

N.J.A.C. 7:50-4.91. An interested party is someone who has a specific property interest sufficient to 

require a hearing on constitutional or statutory grounds. Only appeal requests submitted by someone 

meeting the definition of an interested party will be transmitted to the New Jersey Office of 

Administrative Law for a hearing. Any such appeal must be made in writing to the Commission and 

received at the Commission office no later than 4:00 PM on January 7, 2019 and include the following 

information: 

 

1. the name and address of the person requesting the appeal; 

 

2. the application number; 

 

3. the date on which the determination to be appealed was made; 

 

4. a brief statement of the basis for the appeal; and 

 

5. a certificate of service (a notarized statement) indicating that service of the notice has 

been made, by certified mail, on the clerk of the county, municipal planning board and 

environmental commission with jurisdiction over the property which is subject of this 

decision. 

 

Within 15 days following receipt of a notice of valid appeal, the Executive Director shall initiate the 

procedures for assignment of an Administrative Law Judge to preside at the hearing pursuant to the 

Administrative Procedures Act, N.J.S.A. 52:14B-1 et seq., and the procedures established by the Office 

of Administrative Law.  The time, date and location of such hearing shall be designated by the Office of 

Administrative Law. 

 





Buena Borough Municipal Utilities Authority 
Water Pollution Control Plant

Pinelands Commission 
January 11, 2019



Buena Borough MUA’s Water Pollution Control Facility 
An MOA Success Story

How local groundwater and soil permeability limitations that restricted 
wastewater disposal options in Buena Borough lead to:

• State of the art wastewater treatment in the Pineland Area

• Improved water quality in a Pinelands stream

• The permanent protection of at least 232 acres in the Forest and Rural 
Development Areas in Buena Vista Township 

• The eventual elimination of septic systems (via sewering) at the Buena 
Vista Campground and the extension of sewer service along Route 40  in 
Buena Vista Township.



Formerly proposed  I/P 
lagoon facility

BBMUA Treatment Plant

Areas to be sewered-BV Campground 
and parcels along Route 40





Partners in the MOAs

  
Buena Borough Municipal Utilities Authority (BBMUA)

Buena Vista Township

The Pinelands Commission

• First MOA  (March 27, 2007) To permit wastewater infrastructure 
(infiltration/percolation lagoons) in a Pinelands Agricultural Production 
Area

• Second MOA  (May 26, 2011 amendment to first agreement) To permit the 
BBMUA to continue discharging treated effluent to the Deep Run using 
best available treatment technology.  



Circumstances that lead the need for an MOA

1969   BBMUA’s original wastewater treatment plant began operating with 
a permitted discharge  to the Deep Run Creek, a tributary of the 
Great Egg Harbor River. 

1988     Federal Water Pollution Control Act imposed new effluent discharge 
limits on all wastewater treatment plants.

Because the treatment plant couldn’t meet new Federal and State 
discharge limits, the MUA and DEP entered into an Administrative Consent 
Order (ACO). 

  
∗ The ACO established a construction schedule for a new treatment plant  

that could meet the new (1988) State and Federal discharge limits. 

∗ The new plant would have a permitted flow greater than flow to the original 
plant. 

∗ Per the CMP, the increased flow triggered the need to eliminate the 
existing discharge to the Deep Run, a Pinelands surface water body. 



1990    New treatment plant capable of higher levels of nutrient removal is 
approved by the Commission (with conditions):

∗ Completion of an effluent force main to convey effluent to a facility outside 
the Pinelands Area

∗    Elimination of the Deep Run discharge by June 1,1995. 

1991 The new treatment system becomes operational 

Three alternative methods for effluent  disposal are evaluated:

∗ Discharge to the Blackwater branch, outside the Pinelands Area
∗ Land Application (via spray fields or infiltration lagoons)
∗ Well injection (deep or shallow)

  

Lead up to the MOAs



1990-1995  Alternatives are evaluated

 Discharge to the Blackwater Branch (outside the Pinelands) ruled out:
• Stream study finds insufficient flow in receiving stream

 Land application ruled out: 
• Spray irrigation would require 300 acres – nearby sites not available
• Recharge basins (30 acres) -nearby sites are limited due shallow groundwater 

and/or restricted permeability.

 Deep and shallow well injection ruled out: 
• Deep injection to a brackish confined aquifer is not feasible due to silty and 

clayey conditions to a depth of over 2,000 feet.
• Shallow injection to wells screened between 115 ft. and 195 ft. ruled out by 

DEP due to concerns over well screen fouling. 

With continued discharge to the Deep Run beyond the June 1, 1995 deadline, no 
new connections to the treatment plant were permitted.

Lead up to the MOAs



2003  BBMUA proposed infiltration/percolation lagoons on a 60-acre parcel in the
Pinelands Agricultural Production Area (APA). An MOA was required to 
authorize wastewater infrastructure in the APA.

2007  BBMUA, Buena Vista Township and the Pinelands Commission executed 
the March 27, 2007 MOA to authorize development of the I/P lagoons in the 

 APA. 

 Buena Vista Township agreed to deed restrict approximately 232    
acres of land as the environmental offset to the MOA. 

 BBMUA sought and obtained approximately $4 million from the 
USDA to fund construction of the I/P lagoons. 

2011 Under contract to the Pinelands Commission, USGS determines that    
groundwater mounding would severely interfere with the operation of the 
proposed I/P lagoon facility and the BBMUA was forced to abandon its plan 
to build the facility.

March 27, 2007 MOA



Buena Borough Treatment 
Plant

Approx. Location of Proposed 
Wastewater Land Application Site 

Disposal of Wastewater by Rapid Infiltration Ratings: 





2011 All parties to the MOA conclude that alternatives to stream discharge 
are not feasible due to regional geology. 

$4 million in USDA funding presents an opportunity to upgrade the 
treatment plant to best available, membrane bioreactor (MBR) 
technology 

The March 27, 2007 MOA is amended on March 27, 2007.

 Retains all of the environmental offsets of the original MOA
 Requires the plant to be upgraded to a Membrane Bioreactor 
 Stipulates that there will be no increased flow to the plant until 

the plant  achieves 24 consecutive months of significantly 
enhanced TN and TP discharge limits.

  

May 26, 2011 MOA Amendment



February 2018

BBMUA satisfied the requirement for 24 consecutive months of compliance 
with TN and TP effluent discharge limits set forth in the amended MOA. 

April 2018

Executive Director Wittenberg notified NJDEP of BBMUA’s compliance, 
enabling : 

• An amendment to the Atlantic County Water Quality Management Plan 
(WQMP) and an increase in the permitted flow to the plant from 400,000 
gpd to 600,000 gpd. 

  

Membrane Bioreactor System Performance



Dennis K. Yoder, P.E, Director of Engineering , Remington & Vernick 
Engineers

Alan Zorzi, Plant Superintendent, Buena Borough Municipal Utilities 
Authority, NJDEP Licensed Wastewater Treatment Plant Operator, Collection 
System Operator and Water Treatment System Operator

BBMUAs Water Pollution Control 
Professionals  



Presentation to Pinelands Commission 

January 11, 2019  



Buena Borough, NJ   5 - Stage Bardenpho Carrousel® 

• 1992 WWTP process prior to 
2013 upgrade to add 
membrane biological reactor 

 
Anaerobic 1st Anoxic 

Aerobic 

2nd Anoxic 

Process Flow 
1. Equalization 
2.  Screening 
3.  Anaerobic Zone 
4.  1st Anoxic Zone 
5.  Aerobic Zone with Recycle to 1st 

       Anoxic  
6.  2nd Anoxic Zone 
7. Alum addition in Reaeration 
 Zone 
8. Clarification 
9.  Sand Filtration 
10. UV Disinfection 
11. Effluent Discharge to Deep Run 

Filtration 

Reaeration 
Zone 



Aerial Drone Photos of the Plant  



Aerial Drone Photos of the Plant  



Aerial Drone Photos of the Plant  



Aerial Drone Photos of the Plant  



Design Criteria 

Param Value 

Q 0.6 MGD 

BODi 250 mg/L 

TSSi 250 mg/L 

TKNi 40 mg/L 

TPi 6.0  mg/L 

BODe 5 mg/L 

TNe 2 mg/L 

TPe 0.5 mg/L 

aSRT 17.5 days 

MLSS 8,000 mg/L 

BOD Ldg 33#/kft3/d (aer) 



2013 MBR Upgrade 

• Added fine screen at headworks. 
• Modified recycle pumping. 
• Installed improved aerators for better mixing & energy efficiencies. 
• Replaced clarifier, filters and undisinfection with MBR process. 
• Added carbon feed source. 

Biological Design 



Images 



Images continued 



Typical MBR Configuration 



Total Suspended Solids Monthly Average Concentration 



BOD Monthly Average Concentration 



Phosphorous Monthly Average Concentration 



Nitrate Monthly Average Concentration 



Ammonia Monthly Average Concentration  



Total Nitrogen Monthly Average Concentration 



Bio-Solids Process-Composting 



Bio-Solids Process-Composting 



 

Record of Commission Votes 

 AYE NAY NP A/R*  AYE NAY NP A/R*  AYE NAY NP A/R* 

Ashmun     Howell     Prickett     
Avery     Jannarone     Quinn     

Barr     Lloyd     Rohan Green     
Chila     Lohbauer     Earlen     
Galletta     Pikolycky          

      *A = Abstained / R = Recused 

 

Adopted at a meeting of the Pinelands Commission  Date: ________________________ 

 

   

Nancy Wittenberg  Sean W. Earlen 

Executive Director  Chairman 
 

 

 

RESOLUTION OF THE NEW JERSEY PINELANDS COMMISSION  
 

NO. PC4-19-_____________ 

 

TITLE:  Approving With Conditions an Application for Public Development (Application Number 

2015-0066.003) 

 

Commissioner _______________________________ moves and Commissioner_____________________________ 

seconds the motion that: 
 

WHEREAS, the Pinelands Commission has reviewed the Public Development Application Report and 

the recommendation of the Executive Director that the following application for Public Development be 

approved with conditions: 

 

2015-0066.003 

Applicant: Camden County Department of Public Works 

Municipality: Winslow Township 

Management Area: Pinelands Forest Area 

Date of Report:  January 18, 2019 

Proposed Development: Improvements to the New Brooklyn Lake Dam. 

 

WHEREAS, the improvements to the existing New Brooklyn Lake Dam occurred on a parcel without 

application to, and approved by, the Commission and constitutes a violation of the application 

requirements of the Pinelands Comprehensive Management Plan (CMP); and 

 

WHEREAS, the applicant has completed this application with the Pinelands Commission to address the 

violation; and 

 

WHEREAS, no request for a hearing before the Office of Administrative Law concerning the Executive 

Director’s recommendation has been received for this application; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Pinelands Commission hereby adopts the Conclusion of the Executive Director for the 

proposed development; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Pinelands Commission hereby determines that the proposed public development 

conforms to the standards for approving an application for public development set forth in N.J.A.C. 

7:50-4.57 if the conditions recommended by the Executive Director are imposed; and 

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to N.J.S.A. 13A-5h, no action authorized by the Commission shall have force or 

effect until ten (10) days, Saturdays, Sundays and public holidays excepted, after a copy of the minutes 

of the meeting of the Commission has been delivered to the Governor for review, unless prior to 

expiration of the review period and Governor shall approve same, in which case the action shall become 

effective upon such approval. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that Application Number 2015-0066.003 for public 

development is hereby approved subject to the conditions recommended by the Executive Director. 

 



 

!20150066.003! 

       January 18, 2019 

 

Ms. Kevin Becica, PE (via email) 

Camden County Department of Public Works 

2311 Egg Harbor Road 

Lindenwold, NJ 08021 

 

 Re: Application # 2015-0066.003 

  Block 4201, Lot 1 

  Block 4307, Lot 1 

  Winslow Township 

 

Dear Ms. Becica: 

 

The Commission staff has completed its review of this application for improvements to the New 

Brooklyn Lake Dam. Enclosed is a copy of a Public Development Application Report.  On behalf of the 

Commission’s Executive Director, I am recommending that the Pinelands Commission approve the 

application with conditions at its February 8, 2019 meeting. 

 

The dam improvements were developed prior to completion of an application with the 

Commission. This constitutes a violation of the application requirements of the Pinelands 

Comprehensive Management Plan. Completion of this application is intended to address that 

violation. 

 

Any interested party may appeal this recommendation in accordance with the appeal procedure attached 

to this document. If no appeal is received, the Pinelands Commission may either approve the 

recommendation of the Executive Director or refer the application to the New Jersey Office of 

Administrative Law for a hearing. 

 

Prior to any development, the applicant shall obtain any other necessary permits and approvals. 

 

 Sincerely, 

 

 

 

 Charles M. Horner, P.P. 

 Director of Regulatory Programs 

 

Enc: Appeal Procedure 

 



c: Secretary, Winslow Township Planning Board (via email) 

 Winslow Township Construction Code Official (via email) 

 Winslow Township Environmental Commission (via email) 

 Secretary, Camden County Planning Board (via email) 

 Toni Sapio (via email) 

  

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

PUBLIC DEVELOPMENT APPLICATION REPORT 

 

       January 18, 2019 

 

Ms. Kevin Becica, PE (via email) 

Camden County Department of Public Works 

2311 Egg Harbor Road 

Lindenwold, NJ 08021 

 

Application No.: 2015-0066.003 

   Block 4201, Lot 1 

   Block 4307, Lot 1 

   Winslow Township 

 

This application proposes improvements to the existing New Brooklyn Lake Dam located on the above 

referenced 230.04 acre parcel in Winslow Township.   

 

The application proposes the installation two gabion (stone) mattresses, totaling 4,782 square feet in 

area, on the eastern and western sides of the existing dam spillway.   

 

The improvements to the dam occurred prior to completion of an application with the Commission. This 

constitutes a violation of the application requirements of the Pinelands Comprehensive Management 

Plan (CMP).  Completion of this application is intended to address that violation. 

 

STANDARDS 

 

The Commission staff has reviewed the proposed development for consistency with all standards of the 

CMP. The following reviews the CMP standards that are relevant to this application:   

 

Land Use (N.J.A.C. 7:50-5.23) 

 

The proposed development is located in a Pinelands Forest Area.  The proposed improvements to the 

existing dam are a permitted use as a modification of an existing structure. 

 

Wetlands Standards (N.J.A.C. 7:50-6.6) 

 

There are wetlands located within the project area. The CMP prohibits most development in wetlands 

and requires a buffer of up to 300 feet to wetlands. 

 

The dam improvements will be located within wetlands and the required buffer to wetlands.  The 

proposed development will result in the disturbance of approximately 0.164 acres of wetlands. The CMP 



2 

permits linear improvements, such as dams, in wetlands and the required buffer to wetlands provided an 

applicant demonstrates that certain conditions are met. The applicant has demonstrated that there is no 

feasible alternative for the proposed development that does not involve development in wetlands and the 

required buffer to wetlands or that will result in a less significant adverse impact to wetlands. In 

addition, the proposed development will not result in a substantial impairment of the resources of the 

Pinelands.  With the conditions recommended below, all practical measures will be taken to mitigate the 

impact on wetlands and the required buffer to wetlands. The applicant has indicated that the dam was 

previously damaged by storm events and the improvements are necessary to protect the existing dam 

structure and meet the New Jersey Department of Environmental Protection (NJDEP), Dam Safety 

requirements. The applicant has demonstrated the need for the proposed development overrides the 

importance of protecting the concerned wetlands. 

 

The proposed wetlands disturbance requires a wetlands permit under the New Jersey Freshwater 

Wetlands Protection Act. A New Jersey Freshwater Wetlands General Permit 18 was issued by the 

NJDEP on September 28, 2018. 

 

Vegetation Management Standards (N.J.A.C. 7:50-6.23 & 6.26) 

 

The proposed development will be located within open water and sand areas. The soil disturbance is 

limited to that which is necessary to accommodate the proposed development.  

 

The Landscaping and Revegetation guidelines of the CMP recommend the use of grasses that are 

tolerant of droughty, nutrient poor conditions.  The applicant proposes to utilize a seed mixture which 

meets that recommendation. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

The CMP defines the proposed development as “minor” development.  The CMP does not require public 

notice for minor public development applications. The application was designated as complete on the 

Commission’s website on December 12, 2018. The Commission’s public comment period closed on 

January 11, 2019. No public comment was submitted to the Commission regarding this application. 

 

CONDITIONS 

 

1. Except as modified by the below conditions, the proposed development shall adhere to the plan, 

prepared by T&M Associates and dated September 21, 2018. 

 

2. Disposal of any construction debris or excess fill may only occur at an appropriately licensed 

facility. 

 

3. Any proposed revegetation shall adhere to the “Vegetation” standards of the CMP. Where 

appropriate, the applicant is encouraged to utilize the following Pinelands native grasses for 

revegetation: Switch grass, Little bluestem and Broom-sedge. 

 

4. Prior to any development, the applicant shall obtain any other necessary permits and approvals. 

 

5. Prior to the construction of any portion of the proposed development which will result in the 

disturbance of any wetland area, a Freshwater Wetland Permit shall be obtained pursuant to the 

New Jersey Freshwater Wetlands Protection Act. 



3 

 

6. Appropriate measures shall be taken during construction to preclude sedimentation from entering 

wetlands and shall be maintained in place until all development has been completed and the area 

has been stabilized. 

 

CONCLUSION 

 

As the proposed development conforms to the standards set forth in N.J.A.C. 7:50-4.57, it is 

recommended that the Pinelands Commission APPROVE the proposed development subject to the 

above conditions. 

 



 

 

PINELANDS COMMISSION 

APPEAL PROCEDURE 
 

The Pinelands Comprehensive Management Plan (N.J.A.C. 7:50-4.91) provides an interested party the 

right to appeal any determination made the by Executive Director to the Commission in accordance with 

N.J.A.C. 7:50-4.91. An interested party is someone who has a specific property interest sufficient to 

require a hearing on constitutional or statutory grounds. Only appeal requests submitted by someone 

meeting the definition of an interested party will be transmitted to the New Jersey Office of 

Administrative Law for a hearing. Any such appeal must be made in writing to the Commission and 

received at the Commission office no later than 4:00 PM on February 5, 2019 and include the following 

information: 

 

1. the name and address of the person requesting the appeal; 

 

2. the application number; 

 

3. the date on which the determination to be appealed was made; 

 

4. a brief statement of the basis for the appeal; and 

 

5. a certificate of service (a notarized statement) indicating that service of the notice has 

been made, by certified mail, on the clerk of the county, municipal planning board and 

environmental commission with jurisdiction over the property which is subject of this 

decision. 

 

Within 15 days following receipt of a notice of valid appeal, the Executive Director shall initiate the 

procedures for assignment of an Administrative Law Judge to preside at the hearing pursuant to the 

Administrative Procedures Act, N.J.S.A. 52:14B-1 et seq., and the procedures established by the Office 

of Administrative Law.  The time, date and location of such hearing shall be designated by the Office of 

Administrative Law. 

 



 

Record of Commission Votes 

 AYE NAY NP A/R*  AYE NAY NP A/R*  AYE NAY NP A/R* 

Ashmun     Howell     Prickett     
Avery     Jannarone     Quinn     

Barr     Lloyd     Rohan Green     
Chila     Lohbauer     Earlen     
Galletta     Pikolycky          

      *A = Abstained / R = Recused 

 

Adopted at a meeting of the Pinelands Commission  Date: ________________________ 

 

   

Nancy Wittenberg  Sean W. Earlen 

Executive Director  Chairman 
 

 

 

RESOLUTION OF THE NEW JERSEY PINELANDS COMMISSION  
 

NO. PC4-19-_____________ 

 

TITLE:  Approving With Conditions an Application for Public Development (Application Number 

2018-0098.001) 

 

Commissioner _______________________________ moves and Commissioner_____________________________ 

seconds the motion that: 
 

WHEREAS, the Pinelands Commission has reviewed the Public Development Application Report and 

the recommendation of the Executive Director that the following application for Public Development be 

approved with conditions: 

 

2018-0098.001 

Applicant: Cape May County 

Municipality: Borough of Woodbine 

Management Area: Pinelands Town 

Date of Report:  January 17, 2019 

Proposed Development: Improvements to the Dehirsch Avenue right-of-way. 

 

WHEREAS, no request for a hearing before the Office of Administrative Law concerning the Executive 

Director’s recommendation has been received for this application; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Pinelands Commission hereby adopts the Conclusion of the Executive Director for the 

proposed development; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Pinelands Commission hereby determines that the proposed public development 

conforms to the standards for approving an application for public development set forth in N.J.A.C. 

7:50-4.57 if the conditions recommended by the Executive Director are imposed; and 

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to N.J.S.A. 13A-5h, no action authorized by the Commission shall have force or 

effect until ten (10) days, Saturdays, Sundays and public holidays excepted, after a copy of the minutes 

of the meeting of the Commission has been delivered to the Governor for review, unless prior to 

expiration of the review period and Governor shall approve same, in which case the action shall become 

effective upon such approval. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that Application Number 2018-0098.001 for public 

development is hereby approved subject to the conditions recommended by the Executive Director. 

 



 

!20180098.001! 

       January 17, 2019 

 

Dale Foster (via email) 

Cape May County 

4 Moore Road 

Cape May Court House, NJ 08210 

 

 Re: Application # 2018-0098.001 

  Dehirsch Avenue 

  Borough of Woodbine 

 

Dear Mr. Foster: 

 

The Commission staff has completed its review of this application for improvements to the Dehirsch 

Avenue right-of-way. Enclosed is a copy of a Public Development Application Report. On behalf of the 

Commission’s Executive Director, I am recommending that the Pinelands Commission approve the 

application with conditions at its February 8, 2019 meeting. 

 

Any interested party may appeal this recommendation in accordance with the appeal procedure attached 

to this document. If no appeal is received, the Pinelands Commission may either approve the 

recommendation of the Executive Director or refer the application to the New Jersey Office of 

Administrative Law for a hearing. 

 

Prior to any development, the applicant shall obtain any other necessary permits and approvals. 

 

 Sincerely, 

 

 

 

 Charles M. Horner, P.P. 

 Director of Regulatory Programs 

 

Enc: Appeal Procedure 

 

c: Secretary, Borough of Woodbine Planning Board (via email) 

 Borough of Woodbine Construction Code Official (via email) 

 Secretary, Cape May County Planning Board (via email) 

 Steven C. Morey, CEP (via email) 

 Nancy Lawrence, NJDEP 

 



 

 

PUBLIC DEVELOPMENT APPLICATION REPORT 

 

       January 17, 2019 

 

Dale Foster (via email) 

Cape May County 

4 Moore Road 

Cape May Court House, NJ 08210 

 

Application No.: 2018-0098.001 

   Dehirsch Avenue 

   Borough of Woodbine 

 

This application proposes road improvements to the Dehirsch Avenue right-of-way in the Borough of 

Woodbine.   

 

The application proposes to widen Dehirsch Avenue from 36 feet to 40 feet for 700 linear feet between 

Adams Avenue and Madison Avenue. The application also proposes the installation of eight foot wide 

sidewalk on the south side of Dehirsch Avenue between Adams Avenue and Madison Avenue. 

 

STANDARDS 

 

The Commission staff has reviewed the proposed development for consistency with all standards of the 

Pinelands Comprehensive Management Plan (CMP). The following reviews the CMP standards that are 

relevant to this application:   

 

Land Use (N.J.A.C. 7:50-5.27(a)) 

 

The proposed development is located in the Pinelands Town of Woodbine. The proposed road 

improvements are a permitted land use in a Pinelands Town. 

 

Vegetation Management Standards (N.J.A.C. 7:50-6.23 & 6.26) 

 

The proposed development will be located within maintained lawn areas and developed areas. The 

proposed soil disturbance is limited to that which is necessary to accommodate the development.  

 

The Landscaping and Revegetation guidelines of the CMP recommend the use of grasses that are 

tolerant of droughty, nutrient poor conditions. The applicant proposes to replant non-native lawn grasses 

along the road shoulder.   

 

 



2 

 

Stormwater Management Standards (N.J.A.C.7:50-6.84(a)6) 

 

The applicant has demonstrated that the proposed development is consistent with the CMP stormwater 

management standards. To meet the stormwater management standards, the applicant will be 

constructing two underground stormwater infiltration trenches. 

  

Cultural Resource Standards (N.J.A.C. 7:50-6.151) 

 

The Commission staff reviewed the application for evidence of cultural resources on the parcel. Based 

upon the lack of potential for significant cultural resources on the parcel, a cultural resource survey was 

not required. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

The applicant has provided the requisite public notice. Newspaper public notice was completed on June 

27, 2018. The application was designated as complete on the Commission’s website on December 14, 

2018. The Commission’s public comment period closed on January 11, 2019. The Commission received 

one written public comment (attached) regarding this application.   

 

Commenter #1: The commenter from the New Jersey Department of Environmental Protection, 

Green Acres Program indicated that the proposed development is located  

adjacent to Green Acres parkland (Block 132, Lot 2) and was unable to determine 

whether the proposed widening was occurring within the designated road right-of-

way. 

 

Staff Response: The proposed road improvements are located within the Dehirsch Avenue right-

of-way and are not located in the vicinity of Block 132, Lot 2.   

 

CONDITIONS 

 

1. Except as modified by the below conditions, the proposed development shall adhere to 

the plan, consisting of ten sheets, prepared by Mott MacDonald and dated as follows: 

 

Sheet 1 - June 2018 

Sheets 2-6 & 8 - June 21, 2018; revised to November 19, 2018 

Sheets 7, 9 & 10 - June 21, 2018 

2. Disposal of any construction debris or excess fill may only occur at an appropriately 

licensed facility. 

3. Any proposed revegetation shall adhere to the "Vegetation" standards of the CMP.  

Where appropriate, the applicant is encouraged to utilize the following Pinelands native 

grasses for revegetation: Switch grass, Little bluestem and Broom-sedge. 

4. Prior to any development, the applicant shall obtain any other necessary permits and 

approvals. 

 

 



3 

CONCLUSION 

 

As the proposed development conforms to the standards set forth in N.J.A.C. 7:50-4.57, it is 

recommended that the Pinelands Commission APPROVE the proposed development subject to the 

above conditions.  

 

  



4 

 



 

 

PINELANDS COMMISSION 

APPEAL PROCEDURE 
 

The Pinelands Comprehensive Management Plan (N.J.A.C. 7:50-4.91) provides an interested party the 

right to appeal any determination made the by Executive Director to the Commission in accordance with 

N.J.A.C. 7:50-4.91. An interested party is someone who has a specific property interest sufficient to 

require a hearing on constitutional or statutory grounds. Only appeal requests submitted by someone 

meeting the definition of an interested party will be transmitted to the New Jersey Office of 

Administrative Law for a hearing. Any such appeal must be made in writing to the Commission and 

received at the Commission office no later than 4:00 PM on February 4, 2019 and include the following 

information: 

 

1. the name and address of the person requesting the appeal; 

 

2. the application number; 

 

3. the date on which the determination to be appealed was made; 

 

4. a brief statement of the basis for the appeal; and 

 

5. a certificate of service (a notarized statement) indicating that service of the notice has 

been made, by certified mail, on the clerk of the county, municipal planning board and 

environmental commission with jurisdiction over the property which is subject of this 

decision. 

 

Within 15 days following receipt of a notice of valid appeal, the Executive Director shall initiate the 

procedures for assignment of an Administrative Law Judge to preside at the hearing pursuant to the 

Administrative Procedures Act, N.J.S.A. 52:14B-1 et seq., and the procedures established by the Office 

of Administrative Law.  The time, date and location of such hearing shall be designated by the Office of 

Administrative Law. 

 



 

RESOLUTION OF THE NEW JERSEY PINELANDS COMMISSION  
 

NO. PC4-19-_____________ 

 

TITLE:  Approving With Conditions an Application for an Amended Waiver of Strict Compliance 

(Application Number 1987-0127.001) 

 

Commissioner _______________________________ moves and Commissioner_____________________________ 

seconds the motion that: 
 

WHEREAS, the Pinelands Commission has reviewed each of the Findings of Fact, Conclusion and the 

recommendation of the Executive Director that the following application for Amended Waiver of Strict 

Compliance be approved with conditions: 

 

1987-0127.001 

Applicant: Joe Oppen 

Municipality: Jackson Township 

Management Area: Pinelands Regional Growth Area 

Date of Report:  January 17, 2019 

Proposed Development: Single family dwelling. 

 

WHEREAS, on June 5, 1987, the Pinelands Commission approved a Waiver from the required buffer to 

wetlands for the development of a single family dwelling served by an onsite septic septic system on the 

parcel; and 

 

WHEREAS, it has not demonstrated that a proposed septic system for the development of a single 

family dwelling can be located in an area on the parcel where the minimum depth to the seasonal high 

water table is at least five feet below the natural ground surface; and 

 

WHEREAS, an application for an Amended Waiver of Strict Compliance has been completed for both 

the required buffer to wetlands and the minimum depth to seasonal high water table of five feet below 

the natural ground surface for a proposed septic system; and 

 

WHEREAS, no request for a hearing before the Office of Administrative Law concerning the Executive 

Director’s recommendation has been received for this application; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Pinelands Commission hereby adopts the Findings of Fact and Conclusion of the 

Executive Director for the requested Amended Waiver of Strict Compliance; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Pinelands Commission hereby determines that the requested Amended Waiver 

conforms to the standards for approving an application for a Waiver of Strict Compliance based on 

extraordinary hardship as set forth in N.J.A.C 7:50-4.62, N.J.A.C. 7:50-4.63 and N.J.A.C. 7:50-4.65 if 

the conditions recommended by the Executive Director are imposed; and 

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to N.J.S.A. 13A-5h, no action authorized by the Commission shall have force or 

effect until ten (10) days, Saturdays, Sundays and public holidays excepted, after a copy of the minutes 

of the meeting of the Commission has been delivered to the Governor for review, unless prior to 

expiration of the review period and Governor shall approve same, in which case the action shall become 

effective upon such approval. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 2

 

 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that Application Number 1987-0127.001 for an Amended 

Waiver of Strict Compliance is hereby approved subject to the conditions recommended by the 

Executive Director. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Record of Commission Votes 

 AYE NAY NP A/R*  AYE NAY NP A/R*  AYE NAY NP A/R* 

Ashmun     Howell     Prickett     
Avery     Jannarone     Quinn     

Barr     Lloyd     Rohan Green     
Chila     Lohbauer     Earlen     
Galletta     Pikolycky          

      *A = Abstained / R = Recused 

 

Adopted at a meeting of the Pinelands Commission  Date: ________________________ 

 

   

Nancy Wittenberg  Sean W. Earlen 

Executive Director  Chairman 

 



 

!19870127.001! 

REPORT ON AN APPLICATION FOR AN AMENDED WAIVER OF STRICT COMPLIANCE 

 

       January 17, 2019 

 

Joe Oppen (via email) 

2 Rose Place 

Lakewood, NJ 08701 

 

 Re: Application # 1987-0127.001 

  Block 20801, Lots 24 & 25 

  Jackson Township 

 

Dear Mr. Oppen: 

 

The Commission staff has completed its review of the above referenced application for an Amended 

Waiver of Strict Compliance (“Waiver”) proposing the development of a single family dwelling on the 

above referenced parcel. Based upon the facts and conclusions contained in this Report, on behalf of the 

Commission’s Executive Director, I am recommending that the Pinelands Commission approve the 

application with conditions at its February 8, 2019 meeting. 

 

FINDINGS OF FACT 
 

This application is for the development of a single family dwelling serviced by an alternate design onsite 

septic wastewater treatment system (“alternate design septic system”) on the above referenced 2.07 acre 

parcel in Jackson Township. The parcel is located within a Pinelands Regional Growth Area and in 

Jackson Township’s Regional Growth 2 (RG-2) zoning district.  In this zoning district, Jackson 

Township’s certified land use ordinance requires a residential density of one dwelling unit per 1.0 acre 

for a single family dwelling serviced by an alternate design septic system.    

 

On June 5, 1987, the Pinelands Commission approved a Waiver from the required buffer to wetlands for 

the development of a single family dwelling serviced by an alternate design onsite septic wastewater 

treatment system on the parcel.  

 

The current applicant has not demonstrated that the proposed septic system can be located in an area on 

the parcel where the minimum depth to the seasonal high water table is at least 5 feet below the natural 

surface of the ground. The current applicant has completed this application for an Amended Waiver for 

both the required buffer to wetlands and the minimum depth to seasonal high water table of five feet 

below the natural ground surface when utilizing an onsite septic system.  

         



2 

The parcel has been site inspected by three members of the Commission's staff. Additionally, the 

appropriate resource capability maps and data available to the staff have been reviewed. 

 

A portion of the parcel is wetlands as defined in N.J.A.C. 7:50-6.5(a)2. The wetlands continue onto 

adjacent lands. Any development of the parcel would be located within 300 feet of these wetlands. The 

applicant has submitted no information to demonstrate that the proposed development will not cause a 

significant adverse impact on the wetlands. Based on the quality and location of the wetlands, the 

proposed development will cause a significant adverse impact on the wetlands. As there will be a 

significant adverse impact on wetlands located within 300 feet of the proposed development, the 

applicant is requesting a Waiver from the buffer to wetlands standard contained in the CMP (N.J.A.C. 

7:50-6.14). 

 

The Ocean County Soil Survey indicates that there are Mullica and Downer soils on the parcel. The 

Mullica soils typically have a seasonal high water table of less than 2 feet below the natural ground 

surface. Downer soils typically have a seasonal high water table greater than 5 feet below the natural 

ground surface. Based on a May 21, 2018 Commission staff site inspection, the seasonal high water 

table on the parcel is less than 5 feet below the natural ground surface. Since available information 

indicates that the seasonal high water table on the parcel is less than 5 feet below the natural ground 

surface, the applicant is requesting a Waiver from the seasonal high water table requirement contained in 

the CMP (N.J.A.C. 7:50-6.84(a)5vi).   

 

The parcel includes all contiguous land in common ownership on or after January 14, 1981. The 

proposed single family dwelling will be the sole principal use of the entire contiguous parcel. The 

development of a single family dwelling on the parcel does not require a lot area or density variance 

pursuant to Jackson Township’s certified land use ordinance. A single family dwelling can be developed 

on the parcel without violating any of the criteria contained in N.J.A.C. 7:50-4.65(b) if the conditions 

recommended below are imposed.   
 

Only if the parcel is developed in accordance with the conditions recommended below will the adverse 

impacts on wetlands and ground water quality be minimized.  

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

 

The applicant has provided the requisite public notices. Public notice to all property owners within 200 

feet of the parcel was completed on November 14, 2018. Newspaper public notice was completed on 

November 16, 2018. The application was designated as complete on the Commission’s website on 

December 19, 2018.  The Commission’s public comment period closed on January 11, 2019. No public 

comment was received by the Commission regarding this application.   

 

CONCLUSION 

 

The CMP (N.J.A.C. 7:50-4.62) sets forth the standards which must be met before a Waiver can be 

approved.  The CMP (N.J.A.C. 7:50-4.62(a)) requires that for a Waiver application to be approved based 

on extraordinary hardship, the applicant must demonstrate that the conditions of either N.J.A.C. 

7:50-4.63(a) or (b) have been met. 

 

N.J.A.C. 7:50-4.63(a) sets forth five conditions which must be met for an applicant to qualify for an 

extraordinary hardship pursuant to that subsection. 

 



3 

The first condition is that the only relief sought is from one or more of the standards contained in 

N.J.A.C. 7:50-6 for certain specified development. One of the specified types of development is a single 

family dwelling on a parcel within a Pinelands Regional Growth Area, Pinelands Town or Pinelands 

Village which is at least 20,000 square feet, excluding road rights-of-way, in size and is not served by a 

centralized waste water treatment system. This application is only for a Waiver from the wetlands and 

the seasonal high water table standards contained in N.J.A.C. 7:50-6. The applicant is proposing to 

develop a single family dwelling serviced by an alternate design septic system on a 2.07 acre (90,169 

square feet) parcel. The parcel contains more than 20,000 square feet, excluding road rights-of-way and 

is located in a Pinelands Regional Growth Area. As a result, the applicant meets the criteria set forth in 

N.J.A.C. 7:50-4.63(a)1v. 

 

The second condition is that the parcel includes all contiguous land in common ownership on or after 

January 14, 1981, including lands which are contiguous as a result of ownership of other contiguous 

lands. Since the parcel includes all such contiguous land, the applicant meets the criteria set forth in 

N.J.A.C. 7:50-4.63(a)2. 

 

The third condition is that the proposed use will be the sole principal use on the entire contiguous parcel, 

except as expressly provided in N.J.A.C. 7:50-5.1(c).  As the proposed single family dwelling will be the 

sole principal use on the parcel, the applicant meets the criteria set forth in N.J.A.C. 7:50-4.63(a)3. 

 

The fourth condition is that all necessary municipal lot area and density variances have been obtained if 

the parcel is located in a municipality whose master plan and land use ordinance have been certified by 

the Pinelands Commission. Jackson Township’s master plan and land use ordinance have been certified 

by the Pinelands Commission. The certified ordinance does not require a lot area or density variance. As 

a result, the applicant meets the criteria set forth in N.J.A.C. 7:50-4.63(a)4. 

 

The fifth condition is that the development of the parcel will not violate any of the criteria contained in 

N.J.A.C. 7:50-4.65(b). N.J.A.C. 7:50-4.65(a) precludes the granting of a Waiver which permits a parcel 

to be developed unless such development will be consistent with the purposes and provisions of the 

Pinelands Protection Act, the Federal Act and the CMP and will not result in a substantial impairment of 

the resources of the Pinelands Area. N.J.A.C. 7:50-4.65(b) sets forth the circumstances which do not 

comply with N.J.A.C. 7:50-4.65(a). With the conditions recommended below, the proposed 

development will not violate any of the circumstances contained in N.J.A.C. 7:50-4.65(b). As a result, 

the applicant meets the criteria set forth in N.J.A.C. 7:50-4.63(a)5. 

 

Since the applicant meets all five conditions set forth in N.J.A.C. 7:50-4.63(a), the applicant has 

demonstrated that an extraordinary hardship exists pursuant to N.J.A.C. 7:50-4.62(a). 

 

As required by N.J.A.C. 7:50-4.62(b), the proposed dwelling will not result in substantial impairment of 

the resources of the Pinelands or be inconsistent with the provisions of the Pinelands Protection Act, the 

Federal Act or the CMP in accordance with the criteria set forth in N.J.A.C. 7:50-4.65.  

 

As required by N.J.A.C. 7:50-4.62(c) and with the conditions recommended below, the  proposed 

dwelling will not involve trespass or create a public or private nuisance by being materially detrimental 

or injurious to other property or improvements in the area in which the parcel is located, increase the 

danger of fire or endanger public safety.  

 



4 

The CMP (N.J.A.C. 7:50-4.62(d)) requires that the Waiver only grant the minimum relief necessary to 

relieve the extraordinary hardship. The proposed single family dwelling is the minimum relief necessary 

to relieve the extraordinary hardship which has been shown to exist. 

 

The CMP (N.J.A.C. 7:50-4.62(d)1.iii) requires the acquisition and redemption of 0.25 Pinelands 

Development Credits (PDCs) whenever a Waiver provides relief from one or more of the standards of 

N.J.A.C. 7:50-6. As the applicant is obtaining a Waiver from the wetlands standard (N.J.A.C. 7:50-6.14) 

and the seasonal high water table standard (N.J.A.C. 7:50-6.84 (a)5vi) a condition is included to require 

the applicant to purchase the requisite 0.25 PDCs. 

 

To meet the requirements of N.J.A.C. 7:50-4.62, N.J.A.C. 7:50-4.63(a) and N.J.A.C. 7:50-4.65, the 

Pinelands Commission staff has determined that the parcel must be developed in accordance with the 

following conditions:  

 

1. Except as modified by the below conditions, the proposed development shall adhere to the 

plot plan prepared by Patterson Surveying & Engineering, dated November 20, 2018.  

 

2. Appropriate measures, such as silt fencing or comparable alternative, shall be taken during 

construction to preclude sedimentation from entering wetlands. 

 

3. All development, including clearing and land disturbance, shall be located within the 

proposed development envelope as shown on the above referenced plan.  

 

4. Sufficient dry wells or a comparable alternative shall be installed to contain all stormwater 

runoff from the house. 

 

5. The driveway shall be constructed of crushed stone or other permeable material. 

 

6. The proposed single family dwelling shall utilize an alternate design onsite septic wastewater 

treatment system currently authorized by the Pinelands Comprehensive Management Plan for 

use on lots of at least 1.0 acre. 

 

7. The septic system shall be located in an area where the seasonal high water table is at least 2 

feet below the natural ground surface. Sufficient fill shall be placed in the area of the septic 

system to meet the requirements of NJDEP, Standards for Individual Subsurface Sewage 

Disposal Systems (N.J.A.C 7:9A). 

 

8. Except as provided in N.J.A.C. 7:50-5.1(c), the single family dwelling approved herein shall 

be the sole use of the parcel. 

 

9. Prior to Commission issuance of a letter advising that any submitted municipal or county 

permit or approval may take effect, the Commission must receive documentation from the 

Pinelands Development Credit (PDC) Bank that the requisite 0.25 PDCs have been acquired 

and submitted to the PDC Bank for redemption.  

 

10. This Waiver shall expire February 8, 2024 unless all necessary construction permits have 

been issued by that date. The Waiver shall also expire if any construction permit is allowed 

to expire or lapse after February 8, 2024 or if any renewal or extension of any permit or 

approval or issuance of a new construction permit is necessary after that date. 



5 

 

11. Prior to Commission issuance of a letter advising that any submitted municipal or county 

permit or approval may take effect, a recorded copy of a deed consolidating all the lots into 

one lot shall be submitted to the Pinelands Commission.  

 

12. A copy of a recorded deed containing all of the above conditions shall be submitted to the 

Pinelands Commission prior to completing an application for development with the 

Commission. The deed shall specify that the conditions are being imposed pursuant to a 

January 17, 2019 Pinelands Commission Report (“Waiver Report”) on an Application for a 

Waiver of Strict Compliance for App. No. 1987-0127.001. The deed shall indicate that the 

conditions previously required by the May 11, 1987 Waiver Report for App. No. 1987-

0127.001, approved by the Pinelands Commission on June 5, 1987, have since expired and 

are superseded by the conditions required by the January 17, 2019 Waiver report approved 

by the Pinelands Commission on February 8, 2019. The deed shall also indicate that the 

conditions are enforceable by the Pinelands Commission, Jackson Township and any other 

party of interest. 

 

With the above conditions, the applicant qualifies for a Waiver from the requirements of N.J.A.C. 7:50-

6.14 and N.J.A.C. 7:50-6.86(a)5vi.   

 

Since the applicant meets the provisions of N.J.A.C. 7:50-4.62, N.J.A.C. 7:50-4.63 and N.J.A.C. 7:50-

4.65 for the development of one single family dwelling on the parcel, it is recommended that the 

Pinelands Commission APPROVE the requested Amended Waiver of Strict Compliance subject to the 

above conditions. 

APPEAL 
 

The CMP (N.J.A.C. 7:50-4.91) provides an interested party the right to appeal this recommendation in 

accordance with N.J.A.C. 7:50-4.91. An interested party is someone who has a specific property interest 

sufficient to require a hearing on constitutional or statutory grounds. Only appeal requests submitted by 

someone meeting the definition of an interested party will be transmitted to the New Jersey Office of 

Administrative Law for a hearing. Any such appeal must be made in writing to the Commission and 

received at the Commission office no later than 4:00 PM on February 4, 2019 and include the following 

information: 

 

1. the name and address of the person requesting the appeal; 

 

2. the application number; 

 

3. a brief statement of the basis for the appeal; and 

 

4. a certificate of service (a notarized statement) indicating that service of the notice has 

been made, by certified mail, on the clerk of the county, municipal planning board and 

environmental commission with jurisdiction over the property which is subject of this 

decision. 

 

If no appeal is received, the Pinelands Commission may either approve the determination of the 

Executive Director or refer the application to the New Jersey Office of Administrative Law for a 

hearing. 

 



6 

 

Recommended for Approval by: ___________________________________________________ 

             Charles M. Horner, P.P., Director of Regulatory Programs 

 

c:  Secretary, Jackson Township Planning Board (via email) 

 Jackson Township Construction Code Official (via email) 

 Jackson Township Environmental Commission (via email) 

 Secretary, Ocean County Planning Board (via email) 

 Ocean County Health Department (via email) 

 Jack Birnbaum (via email) 

 

 

 



 

!19970560.002! 

LETTER OF INTERPRETATION #2169 

 

       January 2, 2019 

 

Anthony & Tara Ferrucci (via email) 

306 Cedar Lake Road 

Newfield, NJ 08344 

 

 Re: Application # 1997-0560.002 

  Block 102, Lot 2 

  Cedar Lake Road 

  Borough of Buena 

 

FINDINGS OF FACT 
 

The applicants own the above referenced 21.76 acre parcel in the Borough of Buena. This acreage is 

based on the Township tax map.  The parcel is located in a Pinelands Agricultural Production Area.  

Pursuant to N.J.A.C. 7:50-4.72(a)1, the applicants are requesting a Letter of Interpretation (LOI) as to 

the number of Pinelands Development Credits (PDCs) which are allocated to this parcel.  

 

The entire 21.76 acre parcel is comprised of uplands.  A single family dwelling and one structure 

accessory to an agricultural use exist on the parcel. No resource extraction operation or development has 

been approved for this parcel pursuant to the provisions of the Pinelands Comprehensive Management 

Plan (CMP). 

CONCLUSION 
 

The CMP grants, with certain exceptions, to every parcel of land in a Pinelands Agricultural Production 

Area, a use right known as "Pinelands Development Credits," that can be used to secure a density bonus 

for lands located in a Pinelands Regional Growth Areas (N.J.A.C. 7:50-5.43).  None of these exceptions 

apply to this parcel. 

 

The CMP establishes the ratio by which PDCs are allocated in a Pinelands Agricultural Production Area 

(N.J.A.C. 7:50-5.43(b)2).  Two PDCs are allocated for every 39 acres of uplands, except for uplands 

which are mined as a result of a resource extraction permit approved pursuant to the provisions of the 

Plan; for areas of active berry agricultural bogs and fields and for wetlands in active field agricultural 

use as of February 7, 1979. There are 0.2 PDCs allocated for every 39 acres of other wetlands. 

 

For the 21.76 acres of uplands, the applicants would be entitled to 1.116 PDCs. Not considering the 

existing dwelling, there would be 1.116 PDCs allocated to the parcel.   



2 

However, N.J.A.C. 7:50-5.43(b)3ii requires that the PDC entitlement for the parcel be reduced by 0.25 

PDCs for each existing dwelling unit on the parcel. Based upon the one existing dwelling, there would 

be 0.866 PDCs allocated to the parcel.  

 

PDCs are transacted (allocated, severed and redeemed), with limited exceptions, in 0.25 PDC 

increments (0.25 PDC = 1 dwelling unit).  

 

Therefore, there are 0.75 PDCs allocated to Block 102, Lot 2. 

 

This LOI for an allocation of PDCs is valid for five years from the date of issuance (N.J.A.C. 7:50-

4.76(b)). 

 

APPEAL 
 

The CMP (N.J.A.C. 7:50-4.55) provides an interested party the right to appeal this LOI in accordance 

with N.J.A.C. 7:50-4.91.  An interested party is someone who has a specific property interest sufficient 

to require a hearing on constitutional or statutory grounds.  Only appeal requests submitted by someone 

meeting the definition of an interested party will be transmitted to the New Jersey Office of 

Administrative Law for hearing.  Any such appeal must be made in writing to the Commission within 

eighteen days of the date of this LOI and must include the following information: 

 

1. the name and address of the person making the appeal;  

 

2. the application number; 

 

3. a brief statement of the basis for the appeal; and 

 

4. a certificate of service (a notarized statement) indicating that service of the notice has 

been made, by certified mail, on the clerk of the county, municipal planning board and 

environmental commission with jurisdiction over the property which is subject of this 

decision. 

 

If no appeal is received within eighteen days of the date of this LOI, the LOI shall become binding. 

 

If you are interested in “severing” the allocated PDCs from the parcel and/or information regarding the 

sale of PDCs, please visit the Pinelands Development Credit Bank’s website at 

http://www.nj.gov/pinelands/pdcbank/ or contact the PDC Bank at 609-894-7300. 

 

 Sincerely, 

 

 

 

 Charles M. Horner, P.P. 

 Director of Regulatory Programs 

 

c: Secretary, Borough of Buena Planning Board (via email) 

 Borough of Buena Construction Code Official (via email) 

 Atlantic County Department of Regional Planning and Development (via email) 

 Susan R. Grogan, Executive Director, PDC Bank (via email) 



 

!19911276.003! 

LETTER OF INTERPRETATION #2170 

 

       January 7, 2019 

 

Samuel & Wayne Gorrell (via email) 

Gorrell Brothers Realty, LLC 

952 Harding Highway 

Newfield, NJ 08344 

 

 Re: Application # 1991-1276.003 

  Block 7101, Lot 35 

  Harding Highway 

  Franklin Township 

 

FINDINGS OF FACT 

 

The applicants own the above referenced 53.18 acre parcel in Franklin Township. This acreage is based 

on the recorded property deed. The parcel is located partially in a Pinelands Rural Development Area 

and partially in a Pinelands Agricultural Production Area. Pursuant to N.J.A.C. 7:50-4.72(a)1, the 

applicants are requesting a Letter of Interpretation (LOI) as to the number of Pinelands Development 

Credits (PDCs) which are allocated to this parcel. 

 

PDCs are not allocated to the 8.44 acres of the parcel located in a Pinelands Rural Development Area. 

 

The remaining 44.74 acres of the parcel are located in a Pinelands Agricultural Production Area. The 

44.74 acres in a Pinelands Agricultural Production Area consist of 27.26 acres of uplands and 17.48 

acres of wetlands as defined by N.J.A.C. 7:50-6.5(a). The applicants reserve the right to undertake field 

mapping to further refine the acreage of uplands and wetlands on the parcel. The parcel contains 

structures that are accessory to an agricultural use on the parcel. There are no easements limiting the use 

of that portion of the parcel located in a Pinelands Agricultural Production Area to non-residential uses. 

No resource extraction operation or other development has been approved for that portion of the parcel 

located in a Pinelands Agricultural Production Area pursuant to the provisions of the Pinelands 

Comprehensive Management Plan (CMP). The applicants propose to reserve the right to develop one 

future single family dwelling on that portion of the parcel located in a Pinelands Agricultural Production 

Area.   

 

CONCLUSION 

 

The CMP grants, with certain exceptions, to every parcel of land in a Pinelands Agricultural Production 

Area, a use right known as "Pinelands Development Credits," that can be used to secure a residential 



2 

density bonus for lands located in Pinelands Regional Growth Areas (N.J.A.C. 7:50-5.43). None of these 

exceptions apply to this parcel. 

 

The CMP establishes the ratio by which PDCs are allocated in a Pinelands Agricultural Production Area 

(N.J.A.C. 7:50-5.43(b)2).  Two PDCs are allocated for every 39 acres of uplands, except for uplands 

which are mined as a result of a resource extraction permit approved pursuant to the provisions of the 

CMP, for areas of active berry agricultural bogs and fields and for wetlands in active field agricultural 

use as of February 7, 1979.  There are 0.2 PDCs allocated for every 39 acres of other wetlands. 

 

For the 27.26 acres of uplands, the parcel would be entitled to 1.40 PDCs. For the 17.48 acres of 

wetlands, the parcel would be entitled to 0.09 PDCs.  

 

Not considering the reserved right for a future dwelling on the parcel, there would be 1.49 PDCs 

allocated to this parcel. The CMP (N.J.A.C. 7:50-5.43(b)3iii) requires that the PDC allocation be 

reduced by 0.25 PDCs for each reserved right to develop a future single family dwelling on the parcel. 

Based upon this reduction, there would be 1.24 PDCs allocated to the parcel.  

 

PDCs are transacted (allocated, severed and redeemed), with limited exceptions, in 0.25 PDC 

increments (0.25 PDC = 1 dwelling unit).  

 

Therefore, there are 1.25 PDCs allocated to Block 7101, Lot 35. 

 

This LOI for an allocation of PDCs is valid for five years from the date of issuance (N.J.A.C. 7:50-

4.76(b)). 

 

APPEAL 
 

The CMP (N.J.A.C. 7:50-4.55) provides an interested party the right to appeal this LOI in accordance 

with N.J.A.C. 7:50-4.91.  An interested party is someone who has a specific property interest sufficient 

to require a hearing on constitutional or statutory grounds.  Only appeal requests submitted by someone 

meeting the definition of an interested party will be transmitted to the New Jersey Office of 

Administrative Law for hearing.  Any such appeal must be made in writing to the Commission within 

eighteen days of the date of this LOI and must include the following information: 

 

1. the name and address of the person requesting the appeal; 

 

2. the application number; 

 

3. a brief statement of the basis for the appeal; and 

 

4. a certificate of service (a notarized statement) indicating that service of the notice has 

been made, by certified mail, on the clerk of the county, municipal planning board and 

environmental commission with jurisdiction over the property which is subject of this 

decision. 

 

 

 

 

 



3 

 

If no appeal is received within eighteen days of the date of this LOI, the LOI shall become binding. 

 

 Sincerely, 

 

 

 

 Charles M. Horner, P.P. 

 Director of Regulatory Programs 

 

c: Secretary, Franklin Township Planning Board (via email) 

 Franklin Township Construction Code Official (via email) 

 Franklin Township Environmental Commission (via email) 

 Secretary, Gloucester County Planning Board (via email) 

 Susan R. Grogan, Executive Director, PDC Bank (via email) 

  



 

Pending Public Development and Waiver of Strict Compliance Applications  
accepting public comment at the February 8, 2019 Commission Meeting 

 
Public Development Applications 
 
Application No. 1987-1058.082 – Atlantic County Improvement Authority 
Received on: October 31, 2018 
Project: Construction of two parking lots containing a total of 50 parking spaces 
Municipality: Egg Harbor Township 
Block 101, Lot 9 
 
 
Waiver of Strict Compliance Applications 
 
None 



 

RESOLUTION OF THE NEW JERSEY PINELANDS COMMISSION 
 

NO. PC4-19-_____________ 

 

TITLE: Issuing an Order to Certify Ordinance 2018-19, Amending Chapter 211 (Zoning) of the Code 

of Stafford Township 

 

Commissioner ______________________________ moves and Commissioner ___________________________ 

seconds the motion that: 
 

WHEREAS, on October 7, 1983, the Pinelands Commission fully certified the Master Plan and Land 

Use Ordinances of Stafford Township; and 

 

WHEREAS, Resolution #PC4-83-89 of the Pinelands Commission specified that any amendment to the 

Township’s certified Master Plan and codified Land Use Ordinances be submitted to the Executive 

Director in accordance with N.J.A.C. 7:50-3.45 (Submission and Review of Amendments to Certified 

Master Plans and Land Use Ordinances) of the Comprehensive Management Plan to determine if said 

amendment raises a substantial issue with respect to conformance with the Pinelands Comprehensive 

Management Plan; and 

 

WHEREAS, Resolution #PC4-83-89 further specified that any such amendment shall only become 

effective as provided in N.J.A.C. 7:50-3.45 of the Comprehensive Management Plan; and 

 

WHEREAS, on September 11, 2018, Stafford Township adopted Ordinance 2018-19, amending 

Chapter 211 (Zoning) of the Township’s Code by revising the standards applicable to planned unit 

developments in the HMC (Highway Medical Commercial Zone); and  

 

WHEREAS, the Pinelands Commission received a certified copy of Ordinance 2018-19 on October 24, 

2018; and 

 

WHEREAS, by letter dated November 15, 2018, the Executive Director notified the Township that 

Ordinance 2018-19 would require formal review and approval by the Pinelands Commission; and 

 

WHEREAS, a public hearing to receive testimony on Ordinance 2018-19 was duly advertised, noticed 

and held on December 12, 2018 at the Richard J. Sullivan Center, 15C Springfield Road, New Lisbon, 

New Jersey at 9:30 a.m.; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Executive Director has found that Stafford Township Ordinance 2018-19 is consistent 

with the standards and provisions of the Pinelands Comprehensive Management Plan; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Executive Director has submitted a report to the Commission recommending issuance 

of an order to certify that Ordinance 2018-19, amending Chapter 211 (Zoning) of the Code of Stafford 

Township, is in conformance with the Pinelands Comprehensive Management Plan; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Commission’s CMP Policy and Implementation Committee has reviewed the 

Executive Director’s report and has recommended that Ordinance 2018-19 be certified; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Pinelands Commission has duly considered all public testimony submitted to the 

Commission concerning Ordinance 2018-19 and has reviewed the Executive Director’s report; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Pinelands Commission accepts the recommendation of the Executive Director; and 

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to N.J.S.A. 13:18A-5h, no action authorized by the Commission shall have force 

or effect until ten (10) days, Saturdays, Sundays and public holidays excepted, after a copy of the 

minutes of the meeting of the Commission has been delivered to the Governor for review, unless prior to 

expiration of the review period the Governor shall approve same, in which case the action shall become 

effective upon such approval. 

 



 2 

 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that  

 

1. An Order is hereby issued to certify that Ordinance 2018-19, amending Chapter 211 (Zoning) of 

the Code of Stafford Township, is in conformance with the Pinelands Comprehensive 

Management Plan.  

 

2. Any additional amendments to Stafford Township’s certified Master Plan and Land Use 

Ordinances shall be submitted to the Executive Director in accordance with N.J.A.C. 7:50-3.45 

to determine if said amendments raise a substantial issue with respect to the Comprehensive 

Management Plan. Any such amendment shall become effective only as provided in N.J.A.C. 

7:50-3.45.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Record of Commission Votes 
 AYE NAY NP A/R*  AYE NAY NP A/R*  AYE NAY NP A/R* 

Ashmun     Howell     Prickett     
Avery     Jannarone     Quinn     

Barr     Lloyd     Rohan Green     
Chila     Lohbauer     Earlen     
Galletta     Pikolycky          

      *A = Abstained / R = Recused 

 

Adopted at a meeting of the Pinelands Commission  Date: ________________________ 

 

   

Nancy Wittenberg  Sean W. Earlen 

Executive Director  Chairman 
 



      
REPORT ON ORDINANCE 2018-19, AMENDING CHAPTER 211 (ZONING)  

OF THE CODE OF STAFFORD TOWNSHIP 

       January 25, 2019 

Stafford Township 
260 E. Bay Avenue 
Manahawkin, NJ  08050 

FINDINGS OF FACT 

I. Background 

The Township of Stafford is located in the southern portion of Ocean County, in the eastern section of 
the Pinelands Area.  Pinelands municipalities that abut Stafford Township include the Townships of 
Barnegat, Eagleswood and Little Egg Harbor in Ocean County and the Townships of Woodland and 
Bass River in Burlington County.  

On October 7, 1983, the Pinelands Commission fully certified the Master Plan and Land Use Ordinances 
of Stafford Township.   

On September 11, 2018, Stafford Township adopted Ordinance 2018-19, amending Chapter 211 
(Zoning) of the Township’s Code by revising the standards applicable to planned unit developments in 

the HMC (Highway Medical Commercial Zone). The HMC Zone is located in a Pinelands Regional 
Growth Area. The Pinelands Commission received a certified copy of Ordinance 2018-19 on October 
24, 2018. 

By letter dated November 15, 2018, the Executive Director notified the Township that Ordinance 2018-
19 would require formal review and approval by the Pinelands Commission. 

II. Master Plans and Land Use Ordinances 

The following ordinance has been submitted to the Pinelands Commission for certification: 
    
 * Ordinance 2018-19, amending Chapter 211 (Zoning) of the Code of Stafford Township, 

introduced on August 14, 2018 and adopted on September 11, 2018.  



2 

 

This ordinance has been reviewed to determine whether it conforms with the standards for certification 

of municipal master plans and land use ordinances as set out in N.J.A.C. 7:50 3.39 of the Pinelands 

Comprehensive Management Plan. The findings from this review are presented below. The numbers 

used to designate the respective items correspond to the numbers used to identify the standards in 

N.J.A.C. 7:50 3.39.  

 

 

1. Natural Resource Inventory 

 

 Not applicable. 

 

 

2. Required Provisions of Master Plans and Land Use Ordinances Relating to Development 

Standards 

 

Ordinance 2018-19 amends Chapter 211 (Zoning) of the Code of Stafford Township by revising 

the standards applicable to planned unit developments in the HMC (Highway Medical 

Commercial) Zone. Specifically, Ordinance 2018-19 provides that long-term care facilities, 

assisted living facilities, residential health care facilities, age-restricted independent living and 

continuing care retirement communities may be permitted as part of a planned unit development. 

Ordinance 2018-19 also reduces the maximum number of age-restricted, market rate units 

permitted in a planned unit development from 239 to 125 and specifies that a maximum of 110 

assisted living or continuing care retirement community units may be permitted.  

 

The HMC Zone is located along Route 72, in a Pinelands Regional Growth Area (see Exhibit 

#1). In total, the HMC Zone encompasses approximately 75 acres, the majority of which is 

already developed for hospital and related uses. Permitted uses in the HMC Zone include 

hospitals, medical offices and facilities, hotels, schools, restaurants, banks, child care centers, 

long-term care facilities, assisted living facilities, residential health care facilities and continuing 

care retirement communities. Planned unit developments that contain offices, retail uses and 

multifamily dwellings are also permitted. Such planned unit developments require a minimum of 

25 acres and are subject to a maximum residential density requirement of 13 units per acre. 

Ordinance 2018-19 expands the types of residential uses permitted in a planned unit 

development to include assisted living facilities, age-restricted independent living and continuing 

care retirement communities but does not change the permitted density. It remains the same at 13 

units per acre; thus, Ordinance 2018-19 has no impact on the residential zoning capacity of the 

Township’s Regional Growth Area.  

 

It is worth noting that within Regional Growth Areas, the CMP provides that Pinelands 

municipalities may permit any use, with the exception of certain waste management facilities, 

provided residential density and opportunities for the use of Pinelands Development Credits are 

appropriately accommodated.  The CMP also expressly authorizes assisted living facilities as a 

permitted use in Regional Growth Areas pursuant to N.J.A.C. 7:50-5.34, which sets forth 

specific standards for such uses. Among these standards is the establishment of a permitted 

residential density applicable to assisted living facilities. Ordinance 2018-19 satisfies this 

requirement by establishing a permitted density of 13 units per acre, which while quite a bit 

higher than required by the CMP for Stafford’s Regional Growth Area, is nevertheless 

appropriate given the intensity of surrounding development, developability of vacant lands in the 

HMC Zone and availability of infrastructure.   



3 

 

 

Ordinance 2018-19 is consistent with the land use and development standards of the 

Comprehensive Management Plan. Therefore, this standard for certification is met. 

 

 

3. Requirement for Certificate of Filing and Content of Development Applications 
 

Not applicable.  

 

 

4. Requirement for Municipal Review and Action on All Development 
 

 Not applicable. 

 

 

5. Review and Action on Forestry Applications 

 

 Not applicable. 

 

 

6. Review of Local Permits 
 

Not applicable. 

   

 

7. Requirement for Capital Improvement Program 

 

 Not applicable. 

 

 

8. Accommodation of Pinelands Development Credits 
 

Ordinance 2018-19 adds assisted living facilities, age-restricted independent living and 

continuing care retirement communities to the list of uses permitted as part of a planned unit 

development in Stafford Township’s HMC Zone. All of these residential uses will be subject to 

the density and Pinelands Development Credit requirements previously established by the 

Township for such planned unit developments. Specifically, a maximum density of 13 units per 

acre is permitted and the redemption of Pinelands Development Credits is required for 30 percent 

of all market rate units. As noted previously, Ordinance 2018-19 does not increase residential 

zoning capacity or the number of PDCs that may be used in the HMC Zone. It merely expands 

the types of residential development that are permitted.  

 

With respect to assisted living facilities in the Regional Growth Area, the CMP specifies that 

PDC use must be accommodated when the density of such facilities exceeds 8 units per acre. 

Rather than establishing a base density of 8 units per acre, Ordinance 2018-19 requires that PDC 

use be a significant component of any assisted living project, regardless of density. Thirty 

percent of all assisted living facility units will require the redemption of PDCs, whether an 

assisted living facility is constructed at a density that exceeds 8 units per acre or not. This 

approach is consistent with the intent of N.J.A.C. 7:50-5.34(a)(2) of the CMP. 



4 

 

 

Rather than relying on the traditional approach of providing developers with the option of using 

PDCs to increase permitted density, Ordinance 2018-19 guarantees a PDC redemption rate of 30 

percent for all permitted types of residential development in the HMC Zone.  While this 30 

percent requirement is not as high a number as would be provided through the more traditional 

zoning approach where PDCs would account for 33 percent of the total number of permitted 

units, it is important to remember that the traditional base density/bonus density approach 

utilized throughout the Pinelands Area only provides an opportunity for the use of PDCs. There 

is no requirement under the traditional approach that any PDCs be used in any particular 

development project. Ordinance 2018-19 guarantees that PDCs will be redeemed as part of any 

residential development in the HMC Zone, regardless of the type or number of units that are 

ultimately built. Given the greater certainty provided by this approach and the relatively high 

density permitted in the HMC Zone, the Executive Director believes that the 30 percent PDC 

requirement adopted by Ordinance 2018-19 should be viewed as being consistent with 

Comprehensive Management Plan standards.  

 

This standard for certification is met.  

 

 

9. Referral of Development Applications to Environmental Commission 
 

 Not applicable. 

 

 

10. General Conformance Requirements 
 

Ordinance 2018-19 is consistent with the standards and provisions of the Pinelands 

Comprehensive Management Plan. This standard for certification is met. 

 

 

11. Conformance with Energy Conservation 
 

 Not applicable. 

 

 

12. Conformance with the Federal Act 
 

Ordinance 2018-19 is consistent with the standards and provisions of the Pinelands 

Comprehensive Management Plan. No special issues exist relative to the Federal Act. Therefore, 

this standard for certification is met. 

 

 

13. Procedure to Resolve Intermunicipal Conflicts 
 

 Not applicable. 

 

 

 

 



5 

 

PUBLIC HEARING 
 

A public hearing to receive testimony concerning Stafford Township’s application for certification of 

Ordinance 2018-19 was duly advertised, noticed and held on December 12, 2018 at the Richard J. 

Sullivan Center, 15C Springfield Road, New Lisbon, New Jersey at 9:30 a.m. Ms. Grogan conducted the 

hearing, at which no testimony was received. 

 

Written comments on Ordinance 2018-19 were accepted through December 19, 2018; however, no such 

comments were received. 

  

 

 

 

CONCLUSION 
 

Based on the Findings of Fact cited above, the Executive Director has concluded that Ordinance 2018-

19, amending Chapter 211 (Zoning) of the Code of Stafford Township, complies with Comprehensive 

Management Plan standards for the certification of municipal master plans and land use ordinances. 

Accordingly, the Executive Director recommends that the Commission issue an order to certify 

Ordinance 2018-19 of Stafford Township.  

 

SRG/CST 

Attachment 

 

 



¬«72

Na
ut

i l u
s  

D r

L i
gh

th
ou

se
 D

r

S

R-90

CO

HMC

BP

NMC

P

S ML-P
NC Executive Director's Report

Stafford Ordinance 2018-19
Exhibit 1
1/25/2019Existing Zoning

Parcels
Pinelands Management Areas

Forest Area
Regional Growth Area

Highway Medical Commercial (HMC) Zone

^

¯0 10 205
Miles



 

RESOLUTION OF THE NEW JERSEY PINELANDS COMMISSION 
 

NO. PC4-19-_____________ 

 

TITLE: Issuing an Order to Certify Winslow Township Ordinance O-2018-025, Adopting the 

Maressa Redevelopment Plan 

 

Commissioner ______________________________ moves and Commissioner ___________________________ 

seconds the motion that: 
 

 

WHEREAS, on April 8, 1983, the Pinelands Commission fully certified the Master Plan and Land Use 

Ordinances of Winslow Township; and 

 

WHEREAS, Resolution #PC4-83-30 of the Pinelands Commission specified that any amendment to the 

Township’s certified Master Plan and codified Land Use Ordinances be submitted to the Executive 

Director in accordance with N.J.A.C. 7:50-3.45 (Submission and Review of Amendments to Certified 

Master Plans and Land Use Ordinances) of the Comprehensive Management Plan to determine if said 

amendment raises a substantial issue with respect to conformance with the Pinelands Comprehensive 

Management Plan; and 

 

WHEREAS, Resolution #PC4-83-30 further specified that any such amendment shall only become 

effective as provided in N.J.A.C. 7:50-3.45 of the Comprehensive Management Plan; and 

 

WHEREAS, on November 20, 2018, Winslow Township adopted Ordinance O-2018-025, approving  a 

redevelopment plan for the Maressa Redevelopment Area in the Pinelands Regional Growth Area; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Pinelands Commission received a certified copy of Ordinance O-2018-025 on 

November 28, 2018; and 

 

WHEREAS, by letter dated November 30, 2018, the Executive Director notified the Township that 

Ordinance O-2018-025 would require formal review and approval by the Pinelands Commission; and 

 

WHEREAS, a public hearing to receive testimony on Ordinance O-2018-025 was duly advertised, 

noticed and held on January 9, 2019 at the Richard J. Sullivan Center, 15C Springfield Road, New 

Lisbon, New Jersey at 9:30 a.m.; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Executive Director has found that Winslow Township Ordinance O-2018-025 is 

consistent with the standards and provisions of the Pinelands Comprehensive Management Plan; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Executive Director has submitted a report to the Commission recommending issuance 

of an order to certify that Winslow Ordinance O-2018-025, adopting the Maressa Redevelopment Plan, 

is in conformance with the Pinelands Comprehensive Management Plan; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Commission’s CMP Policy and Implementation Committee has reviewed the 

Executive Director’s report and has recommended that Ordinance O-2018-025 be certified; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Pinelands Commission has duly considered all public testimony submitted to the 

Commission concerning Ordinance O-2018-025 and has reviewed the Executive Director’s report; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Pinelands Commission accepts the recommendation of the Executive Director; and 

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to N.J.S.A. 13:18A-5h, no action authorized by the Commission shall have force 

or effect until ten (10) days, Saturdays, Sundays and public holidays excepted, after a copy of the 

minutes of the meeting of the Commission has been delivered to the Governor for review, unless prior to 

expiration of the review period the Governor shall approve same, in which case the action shall become 

effective upon such approval. 

 



 2 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that  

 

1. An Order is hereby issued to certify that Winslow Township Ordinance O-2018-025, adopting 

the Maressa Redevelopment Plan, is in conformance with the Pinelands Comprehensive 

Management Plan.  

 

2. Any additional amendments to Winslow Township’s certified Master Plan and Land Use 

Ordinances shall be submitted to the Executive Director in accordance with N.J.A.C. 7:50-3.45 

to determine if said amendments raise a substantial issue with respect to the Comprehensive 

Management Plan. Any such amendment shall become effective only as provided in N.J.A.C. 

7:50-3.45.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Record of Commission Votes 
 AYE NAY NP A/R*  AYE NAY NP A/R*  AYE NAY NP A/R* 

Ashmun     Howell     Prickett     
Avery     Jannarone     Quinn     

Barr     Lloyd     Rohan Green     
Chila     Lohbauer     Earlen     
Galletta     Pikolycky          

      *A = Abstained / R = Recused 

 

Adopted at a meeting of the Pinelands Commission  Date: ________________________ 

 

   

Nancy Wittenberg  Sean W. Earlen 

Executive Director  Chairman 
 



      
REPORT ON WINSLOW TOWNSHIP ORDINANCE O-2018-025,  

ADOPTING THE MARESSA REDEVELOPMENT PLAN 

       January 25, 2019 

Winslow Township 
125 South Route 73 
Winslow Township, NJ 08037 

FINDINGS OF FACT 

I. Background 

The Township of Winslow is located on the western fringe of the Pinelands Area, in Camden County. 
Pinelands municipalities adjacent to Winslow Township's Pinelands Area include the Boroughs of 
Berlin and Chesilhurst and the Township of Waterford in Camden County, the Township of Monroe in 
Gloucester County, and the Town of Hammonton and the Borough of Folsom in Atlantic County.  

On April 8, 1983, the Pinelands Commission fully certified the Master Plan and Land Use Ordinances of 
Winslow Township. 

On November 20, 2018, Winslow Township adopted Ordinance O-2018-025, approving a 
redevelopment plan for the Maressa Redevelopment Area in the Pinelands Regional Growth Area. The 
Pinelands Commission received a certified copy of Ordinance O-2018-025 on November 28, 2018. 

By letter dated November 30, 2018, the Executive Director notified the Township that Ordinance O-
2018-025 would require formal review and approval by the Pinelands Commission. 

II. Master Plans and Land Use Ordinances 

The following ordinance has been submitted to the Pinelands Commission for certification: 
    
 * Ordinance O-2018-025, adopting the Maressa Redevelopment Plan, introduced on 

September 25, 2018 and adopted on November 20, 2018.  

This ordinance has been reviewed to determine whether it conforms with the standards for certification 
of municipal master plans and land use ordinances as set out in N.J.A.C. 7:50 3.39 of the Pinelands 



2 

 

Comprehensive Management Plan. The findings from this review are presented below. The numbers 

used to designate the respective items correspond to the numbers used to identify the standards in 

N.J.A.C. 7:50 3.39.  

 

 

1. Natural Resource Inventory 

 

 Not applicable. 

 

 

2. Required Provisions of Master Plans and Land Use Ordinances Relating to Development 

Standards 

 

Ordinance O-2018-025 adopts a Redevelopment Plan, dated September 20, 2018, for the 

Maressa Redevelopment Area. This new Redevelopment Area consists of four lots (Block 1502, 

Lots 10, 25 and 33 and Block 2502, Lot 15) and is located on Route 73 near the municipality’s 

northern border (see Exhibit #1). In total, 105 acres are included in the new redevelopment area, 

29 of which were previously located in the PC-2 (Commercial) Zone and 76 of which were in the 

PTC (Pinelands Town Center) Zone where a mix of residential and commercial uses is required. 

The entire redevelopment area is currently vacant and located in a Pinelands Regional Growth 

Area. 

 

The purpose of the Maressa Redevelopment Plan is to facilitate a mix of commercial and 

residential uses in the Redevelopment Area, with commercial uses along the highway (Route 73) 

and residential development toward the rear of the parcels. To that end, permitted uses in the 

Redevelopment Area include single-family dwellings and townhouses, as well as a variety of 

nonresidential uses including offices, research facilities, hospitals, retail stores, banks, 

restaurants and gas stations. All such nonresidential uses must be located within 600 feet of the 

Route 73 right of way. A maximum density of five units per acre is permitted for single-family 

dwellings. Townhouses are permitted at a density of eight units per acre on Block 2502, Lot 15 

and at five units per acre on the other lots in the Redevelopment Area. The acquisition and 

redemption of Pinelands Development Credits is required for 25 percent of all residential units in 

the Redevelopment Area. No exemption for affordable housing units has been provided because 

the Redevelopment Plan does not require that any of the new units be made affordable to low 

and moderate income households.  Any development that occurs within the redevelopment area 

must comply with all other municipal application requirements and development regulations, as 

well as the Comprehensive Management Plan.   

 

The Maressa Redevelopment Plan provides an opportunity for development of 594 units in 

Winslow’s Regional Growth Area, nearly 400 more than permitted by the underlying zoning 

plan. The permitted densities in the Redevelopment Area are significantly higher than that 

prescribed by the Comprehensive Management Plan, which requires the Township to zone for a 

density of only 1.125 units per upland acre in its Regional Growth Area.  However, the 

Comprehensive Management Plan does provide municipalities with the ability to zone portions 

of their Regional Growth Areas for higher densities, provided the lands in question are 

appropriate for more intensive development, infrastructure exists or can be provided to support 

the increased density and sufficient opportunities for the use of Pinelands Development Credits 

are provided. The Maressa Redevelopment Area meets these standards, as detailed below. 

 



3 

 

In terms of environmental conditions, several of the lots included in the Redevelopment Area do 

contain a significant amount of wetlands (see Exhibit #2).  Field delineation of the wetlands will 

be required to determine their exact extent as well as required wetlands buffer areas. The 

Redevelopment Plan acknowledges these wetlands constraints and appropriately permits a 

variety of housing types as well as the ability to reduce lot area and bulk requirements through 

cluster development as a means of providing design flexibility for future residential development 

projects.  These measures provide a reasonable opportunity for the permitted densities to be 

achieved, as is required pursuant to N.J.A.C. 7:50-3.39(a)2vii, while ensuring that CMP wetlands 

protection standards are met.   

 

With respect to the availability of infrastructure to serve the Redevelopment Area, both water 

and sewer will be provided.  Importantly, a 2017 amended Memorandum of Understanding 

amongst the Commission, Winslow Township and the Camden County Municipal Utilities 

Authority sets forth a plan for the provision of water to the Township’s entire Regional Growth 

Area in a manner that ensures protection to the Kirkwood/Cohansey aquifer.  The Memorandum 

of Understanding requires that water from a non-Kirkwood/Cohansey source be provided to 

serve future development once water demands reach a certain point.  

 

The third condition for approval of increased densities and zoning capacity relates to the 

accommodation of Pinelands Development Credit opportunities.  As discussed in more detail in 

Section 8 of this report, the Redevelopment Plan requires the use of Pinelands Development 

Credits for 25 percent of all residential units in the Redevelopment Area, regardless of project 

density.  Thus, Pinelands Development Credit use has not only been accommodated, it has been 

guaranteed in the Redevelopment Area.    

 

Ordinance O-2018-025 is consistent with the land use and development standards of the 

Comprehensive Management Plan. Therefore, this standard for certification is met. 

 

 

3. Requirement for Certificate of Filing and Content of Development Applications 
 

Not applicable.  

 

 

4. Requirement for Municipal Review and Action on All Development 
 

 Not applicable. 

 

 

5. Review and Action on Forestry Applications 

 

 Not applicable. 

 

 

6. Review of Local Permits 
 

Not applicable. 

   

 



4 

 

7. Requirement for Capital Improvement Program 

 

 Not applicable. 

 

 

8. Accommodation of Pinelands Development Credits 
 

Ordinance O-2018-025 adopts a new redevelopment plan for a portion of Winslow Township’s 

Regional Growth Area.  Based on this plan, 594 units will be permitted in the Maressa 

Redevelopment Area, with the use of Pinelands Development Credits (PDC) required for 25 

percent of all proposed units. No exemption for affordable housing units is provided, as the 

Township’s Housing Element and Fair Share Plan do not call for any such units in the 

Redevelopment Area. The result is increased residential zoning capacity and opportunities for 

the redemption of PDCs in the Township’s Regional Growth Area. A maximum of 594 new units 

can be developed, which would require the redemption of 149 rights (37.25 PDCs).  These 

numbers are well in excess of what the Comprehensive Management Plan prescribes for 

Winslow’s Regional Growth Area.   

 

It is important to note that the new Maressa Redevelopment Area standards described above 

represent a departure from the traditional zoning and PDC strategy outlined in N.J.A.C. 7:50-

5.28(a).  This section of the Comprehensive Management Plan anticipates that municipalities 

will establish “base” densities in their various Regional Growth Area zoning districts and then 

provide opportunities to increase such densities through the use of PDCs. In Winslow’s Regional 

Growth Area, the Comprehensive Management Plan establishes a “base” density of 1.125 units 

per developable acre and directs the Township to provide for “bonus” density through the use of 

PDCs to allow for a total of 1.69 units per developable acre. There is nothing in the CMP that 

prevents municipalities from exceeding these minimum requirements, which is exactly what 

Winslow Township has elected to do.  The Township has chosen to provide for higher density in 

the Maressa Redevelopment Area as a means of facilitating a mixture of housing types and 

attracting additional commercial ratables on a major highway. At the same time, the Township 

has adopted standards to ensure that PDC use will be a significant part of any redevelopment 

project.    

 

Rather than relying on the traditional approach of providing developers with the option of using 

PDCs to increase permitted density, Ordinance O-2018-025 guarantees a PDC redemption rate 

of 25 percent for all residential development within the Redevelopment Area, regardless of 

project density. Given the greater certainty provided by the Township’s overall approach in 

terms of PDC use, the Executive Director finds that the PDC requirements adopted by Ordinance 

O-2018-025 are consistent with Comprehensive Management Plan standards. This standard for 

certification is met.  

 

 

9. Referral of Development Applications to Environmental Commission 
 

 Not applicable. 

 

 

  



5 

 

10. General Conformance Requirements 
 

Ordinance O-2018-025 is consistent with the standards and provisions of the Pinelands 

Comprehensive Management Plan. This standard for certification is met. 

 

 

11. Conformance with Energy Conservation 
 

 Not applicable. 

 

 

12. Conformance with the Federal Act 
 

Ordinance O-2018-025 is consistent with the standards and provisions of the Pinelands 

Comprehensive Management Plan. No special issues exist relative to the Federal Act. Therefore, 

this standard for certification is met. 

 

 

13. Procedure to Resolve Intermunicipal Conflicts 
 

 The redevelopment area established by Ordinance O-2018-025 does not include lands that are 

adjacent to any other municipalities. Therefore, intermunicipal conflicts are not anticipated and 

this standard for certification is met. 

 

 

 

PUBLIC HEARING 
 

A public hearing to receive testimony concerning Winslow Township’s application for certification of 

Ordinance O-2018-025 was duly advertised, noticed and held on January 9, 2019 at the Richard J. 

Sullivan Center, 15C Springfield Road, New Lisbon, New Jersey at 9:30 a.m. Ms. Grogan conducted the 

hearing, at which no testimony was received. 

 

Written comments were accepted through January 11, 2019; however, no such comments were received. 

  

 

 

 

CONCLUSION 
 

Based on the Findings of Fact cited above, the Executive Director has concluded that Ordinance O-

2018-025, adopting the Maressa Redevelopment Plan, complies with Comprehensive Management Plan 

standards for the certification of municipal master plans and land use ordinances. Accordingly, the 

Executive Director recommends that the Commission issue an order to certify Ordinance O-2018-025 of 

Winslow Township.  

 

SRG/CWI 

Attachments 

 



£¤30

¬«73

¬«73

Ta n s b o r o  R d

B l u e  A n c h o r  R d

W  F a c t o r y  R d

Ber l i n  N e w
 F r e e d o m

 R d

F a c t o r y  R d

H a y e s  M i l l  R d

T a u
n t o

n  R
dPR-1

PR-4

PR-6

PTC

PI-3

PC-2

PR-3

PC-2

PC-3

^

¯0 0.25 0.50.125
Miles

Maressa Redevelopment Plan
Redevelopment Parcels
Parcels
Existing Zoning

Pinelands Management Areas
Regional Growth Area
Pinelands Village
Rural Development Area

Executive Director's Report
Winslow Ordinance O-2018-25
Exhibit 1
1/25/2019



 

RESOLUTION OF THE NEW JERSEY PINELANDS COMMISSION 
 

NO. PC4-19-_____________ 
 

TITLE: To Adopt an Amendment to the Pinelands Infrastructure Master Plan 
 

Commissioner ______________________________ moves and Commissioner ___________________________ 
seconds the motion that: 
 

WHEREAS, P.L. 1985, Chapter 302 (the Pinelands Infrastructure Trust Bond Act) authorized creation 
of a debt of the State of New Jersey by issuance of bonds in the sum of $30,000,000 for the purpose of 
providing grants and loans to local units of government in the Pinelands Area for infrastructure capital 
projects necessary to accommodate development in the Regional Growth Areas; and 
 
WHEREAS, P.L. 1985, Chapter 302 required that the Pinelands Commission adopt an infrastructure 
master plan to be used in evaluating projects to be financed, to specify funding structure in terms of 
grants and loans to be awarded, and to recommend the level of funding for selected projects; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Department of Environmental Protection adopts regulations regarding grant and loan 
procedures and regulations regarding allowable costs in N.J.A.C. 7:22 – 6 and 7 to implement the 
awards specified in the adopted Pinelands Infrastructure Master Plan; and 
 
WHEREAS, on January 16, 1987, the Pinelands Commission adopted the original Pinelands 
Infrastructure Master Plan by Resolution PC4-87-03; and  
 
WHEREAS, since that time, the Pinelands Commission adopted a number of amendments to the 
Pinelands Infrastructure Master Plan, most recently in 2006 through Resolution PC4-06-12; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Pinelands Commission awarded all available funding to various wastewater 
construction projects and to a program that provided a portion of planning costs to Pinelands 
municipalities for the purposes of preparing utility service plans; and 
 
WHEREAS, repayment of loans issued under the Pinelands Infrastructure Master Plan and earlier 
amendments has resulted in the availability of approximately $15,000,000 in the Pinelands Infrastructure 
Trust Fund; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Pinelands Commission has conducted outreach among Pinelands municipalities and 
utility authorities to gauge the needs for infrastructure to support the demands of the Regional Growth 
Area; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is necessary to revise the Pinelands Infrastructure Master Plan to create a framework for 
ranking new projects and to design a structure for funding that will address the current needs for 
infrastructure; and 
 
WHEREAS, a public hearing to receive testimony on a proposed amendment to revise the project 
ranking criteria and funding structure was duly advertised, noticed and held on January 3, 2019 at the 
Richard J. Sullivan Center, 15C Springfield Road, New Lisbon, New Jersey at 7:00 p.m.; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Executive Director has found that the amendment supports the objectives of the 
Pinelands Infrastructure Bond Act; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Executive Director has submitted a report to the Commission recommending adoption 
of the January 2019 Pinelands Infrastructure Master Plan amendment; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Commission’s CMP Policy and Implementation Committee has reviewed the 
Executive Director’s report and has recommended that the January 2019 Infrastructure Master Plan 
amendment be adopted; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Pinelands Commission has duly considered all public testimony submitted to the 
Commission concerning the amendment and has reviewed the Executive Director’s report; and 
 
 
 
 
 



 2 

 
 
WHEREAS, the Pinelands Commission accepts the recommendation of the Executive Director; and 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to N.J.S.A. 13:18A-5h, no action authorized by the Commission shall have force 
or effect until ten (10) days, Saturdays, Sundays and public holidays excepted, after a copy of the 
minutes of the meeting of the Commission has been delivered to the Governor for review, unless prior to 
expiration of the review period the Governor shall approve same, in which case the action shall become 
effective upon such approval. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that  

 
1. An Order is hereby issued to amend the Pinelands Infrastructure Master Plan by revising the 

project ranking criteria and funding structure in accordance with the January 2019 amendment. 
 
2. The Executive Director shall issue a request for project proposals and in the event that projects 

are submitted to and evaluated by the Commission in accordance with the amended Infrastructure 
Master Plan, selection of projects and funding awards will be considered in a future amendment.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Record of Commission Votes 

 AYE NAY NP A/R*  AYE NAY NP A/R*  AYE NAY NP A/R* 
Ashmun     Howell     Prickett     
Avery     Jannarone     Quinn     
Barr     Lloyd     Rohan Green     
Chila     Lohbauer     Earlen     
Galletta     Pikolycky          

      *A = Abstained / R = Recused 

 
Adopted at a meeting of the Pinelands Commission  Date: ________________________ 

 
   

Nancy Wittenberg  Sean W. Earlen 
Executive Director  Chairman 

 



REPORT ON THE JANUARY 2019 PINELANDS INFRASTRUCTURE TRUST MASTER 
PLAN AMENDMENT TO SET RANKING CRITERIA AND FUNDING STRUCTURE

The 1985 Pinelands Infrastructure Trust Fund (PITF) Bond Act created an initial source of funding with 
the goal of defraying the costs of infrastructure in Pinelands Regional Growth Areas while 
simultaneously offering land value equity to property owners in the Preservation Area, Agricultural 
Production Area and Special Agricultural Production Area through the use of Pinelands Development 
Credits (PDC). The PITF Act directed the Pinelands Commission to prepare a Master Plan to evaluate 
and identify infrastructure projects and to include a funding structure through which the State would 
administer grants and/or loans for projects that are identified in the Master Plan.  The Act allows funding 
for a wide array of infrastructure projects to support development in the Regional Growth Area.  
Infrastructure projects may include wastewater (including stormwater and green infrastructure), water 
supply, or transportation, as long as it serves new development in the Regional Growth Area with the 
potential to generate demand for PDCs.

The Commission previously adopted a PITF Master Plan and amendments that set forth projects and 
ranking, and funds were disbursed in the form of loans and grants.  Repayment of loans has replenished 
the Fund. Currently, there is approximately $15 million available in the Trust Fund.  Considering the 
length of time that has elapsed since the prior funding rounds, the Commission sought input from local 
governments and utilities regarding current infrastructure needs.  Staff reached out via mail, e-mail, web 
notice, telephone and in-person meetings with local officials and utility authorities.  Staff reviewed that 
input along with historical information to assist with preparation of the proposed PITF Master Plan 
Amendment.   

Several projects are intended to be subsidized and this Master Plan amendment will establish the criteria 
by which projects will be evaluated and the funding structure through which loans and grants may be 
offered pending approval by the State legislature.  Pending Commission adoption of the January 2019 
amendment, Commission staff anticipates issuing a Request for Proposals by mid-March 
2019.  Following receipt and ranking of project proposals, a second Master Plan amendment will be 
prepared and provided to the Commission for consideration. That second amendment will include a list 
of specific projects, ranked in accordance with this January 2019 amendment, and will be forwarded for 
legislative approval upon resolution of the Commission.   



2 
 

PUBLIC HEARING 
 
A public hearing to receive testimony concerning the PITF Master Plan amendment ranking criteria and 
funding structure was duly advertised, noticed, and held on January 3, 2019 at the Richard J. Sullivan 
Center, 15C Springfield Road, New Lisbon, New Jersey at 7:00 P.M. Ms. Susan Grogan conducted the 
hearing.  Testimony was given by two members of the public: 

1. Mark Demitroff (see Exhibit #1) 
2. April Jenkins 

 
Written comments on the PITF Master Plan amendment were accepted through January 10, 2019 and 
were received from the following individuals: 
 

1. Mark Demitroff (see Exhibit #1) 
2. Ian Borden, PP, AICP of Professional Design Services LLC.  January 2, 2019 e-mail (see Exhibit 

#2) 
3. Philip Sartorio, Community Development Director, Hamilton Township. January 3, 2019 letter 

(see Exhibit #3) 
4. Albert Yodakis, Director of Public Works, Manchester Township.  January 4, 2019 letter (see 

Exhibit #4) 
5. David Harpell, Executive Director, Jackson Township Municipal Utilities Authority. January 7, 

2019 e-mail (see Exhibit #5) 
 

 
 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S RESPONSE 
 
One commenter in public testimony and written comments (Exhibit #1) stated that he was opposed to 
the amendment because it supports redevelopment. The commenter said redevelopment may occur in 
Pinelands Villages, as they are designated growth areas under the State Development and 
Redevelopment Plan.  The commenter further notes that redevelopment should not be used in the 
Pinelands Area because no government agency oversees it.  

Response: The PITF Act does not allow PITF funding to be used to support development or 
redevelopment in Pinelands Villages, but only in Pinelands Regional Growth Areas. In addition, 
any development or redevelopment that is proposed within the Pinelands Area will be required to 
meet all Comprehensive Management Plan environmental standards as well as CMP land use 
and intensity standards for development in the applicable management area. 
 

The second commenter giving oral testimony and one commenter who submitted written comments 
(Exhibit #4) stated support of the amendment without raising any specific issues. 

Response: The commenters’ support is noted. 
 
One commenter (Exhibit #2) indicates that a lack of sewer and water has hindered development in the 
Regional Growth Areas of Manchester and Jackson townships.  Support is offered for the amendment 
and the funding structure. 

Response: The commenter’s support is noted. 
 

One commenter (Exhibit #3) notes that the ranking criteria are acceptable, but questions whether points 
will be assigned on a scale or only on an “all or nothing” basis.  He further states that the funding 
structure should be modified so that projects which satisfy municipal affordable housing obligations will 



3 
 

receive a higher proportion of grant to loan on a sliding scale so that a greater percentage of affordable 
housing will result in a higher proportion of the funding to be allocated as a grant. 

Response: In response to the question about points assigned to ranking criteria, the draft 
amendment includes point scales for each of the mandatory factors.  As implied by the language 
of the draft amendment that bonus factors may be awarded “up to 10 points”, proportional points 
may be assigned to these factors.  If funding demand is such that competitive projects must be 
more closely evaluated, bonus factors will be allocated points on a scale of 0 – 10 points.   
 
As to the comment regarding affordable housing, it is appropriate that municipal affordable 
housing obligations be addressed in the Regional Growth Areas. The proposed amendment 
recognizes that the accommodation of affordable housing obligations often necessitates higher 
density development and awards a greater number of points in the ranking system to projects that 
would support higher numbers of units and greater numbers of Pinelands Development Credits.  
Additional points will be awarded for projects that serve areas zoned for residential development 
at a net density of at least 3.7 units per acre.  In addition, the factor associated with local 
matching funds indicates that financial hardship may be taken into account when considering 
whether 10 percent of the project funding must come from non-PITF sources. Project proposals 
will be required to lay out the financial hardship which will be considered in the ranking process. 
It is conceivable that such financial hardship may be related to a municipality’s need to fund and 
construct infrastructure for affordable housing projects. No specific change to the funding 
allocation is recommended for this amendment, but may be part of a future amendment if 
deemed necessary. 

 
One commenter (Exhibit #5) stated that strains on limited resources caused by new regulatory mandates 
would hinder new infrastructure in Regional Growth Areas without the availability of the PITF. The 
commenter supports the ranking criteria and requests that the requirement for local matching funds be 
limited to no more than 10 percent of project costs, although additional points might be awarded if more 
than 10 percent in local matching funds are provided. 

Response: The proposed amendment would award points for projects with a minimum match of 
10 percent in non-PITF funding as the commenter suggests, but also allows some flexibility 
where financial hardship has been clearly documented in the PITF project proposal. The 
commenter’s support of the amendment is noted.   

 
 
 

CONCLUSION 
 
Based on the background and comments described above, the Executive Director has concluded that the 
January 2019 PITF Master Plan amendment will support the objectives of the PITF Act.  Accordingly, 
the Executive Director recommends that the Commission adopt the Amendment as proposed. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
gab 



MARK DEMITROFF 
822 MAIN AVENUE , VINELAND (RICHLAND). NJ 08360 - 9346 

January 03, 2019 
Pinelands Commission 
PO Box 359 
New Lisbon, NJ 08064 

Pinelands Commissioners, 

RE: PINELANDS VILLAGES 

Pinelands Infrastructure Master Plan 
Proposed Amendment 

Please include this document as testimony for the Pinelands Infrastructure 
Master Plan Proposed Amendment hearing of January 03, 2019. 

ABSTRACT 

Pinelands Villages- now inappropriately deemed as Regional Growth Areas 
- should not be included as Pinelands Infrastructure Trust Fund (PITF) 
recipients since "significant" redevelopment will likely become the preferred 
tool to achieve Pinelands Infrastructure Master Plans ' goals (e.g., Richland 
Village). The Pinelands Commission (PC) is responsible for all development 
within its jurisdiction. Redevelopment is development, yet the PC's ability to 
review redevelopment is limited in scope. This can't be. Additionally the PC 
lacks authority to determine if redevelopment parcels meet the standards of 
"land in need of redevelopment." Normally, the Department of Community 
Affairs (DCA) performs that duty, but by Memorandum of Agreement (MOA, 
1999) with the PC, the DCA has no say over Pinelands redevelopment. Also, 
the 1999 MOA indicated the SPC (also DCA, OPA) must "rely on the adopted 
plans and regulations of the PC to achieve objectives of the [State 
Development and Redevelopment Plan] SDRP," and not the other way around. 
Also troubling, when things go wrong, there doesn't appear to be an entity to 
turn to for help. Significant conflicts exist between redevelopment and legal 
requirements of the Comprehensive Management Plan (CMP). The very 
planning mechanism sought is in itself flawed within its Pinelands National 
Reserve (PNR) context. 

856 696 - 2527 
TELEPHONE 

MARK@BUCKHORN-GSl .COM 
E MAI l 

Pinelands Infrastructure Trust Fund
Master Plan Amendment  
January 2019      Exhibit #1



DISCUSSION 

1) PINELANDS HAS AUTHORITY OVER DEVELOPMENT- One of the 
environmental controls of the CMP is that all PNR development is under 
the purview of the PC. This is true even if jurisdictions overlap, as in the 
case of Coastal Area Facility Review Act (CAPRA) regulations. According 
to Attorney General Dow (2011, see addenda), "N.J.S.A. 13:18:A-23 and 
N.J.A.C. 7:7E-3.44 ... provides that '[w]ithin the Pinelands National 
Reserve, the Pinelands Commission will serve as a reviewing agency for 
the coastal construction permit applications."' Redevelopment is a State
constitution authorized land-use management designation. In extension, it 
seems reasonable that the PC also has management powers over 
redevelopment (a specific form of development). 

2) REDEVELOPMENT IS DEVELOPMENT - According to the Oxford 
English Dictionary (2009), redevelopment is defined as "The action or an 
act of developing again (in various senses)," specifically "The redesigning 
and rebuilding of an urban area, typically after the demolition of existing 
buildings. (The usual current sense.)" In fact, redevelopment is a form of 
development. According to the CMP (7:50-2.11 Definitions), Development 
means "change of or enlargement of any use or disturbance of any land ... " 

3) ALL DEVELOPMENT MUST COMPORT TO THE CMP - Herein lies a 
dilemma. According to Attorney General Dow (2011 ), "The New Jersey 
Pinelands Commission's ... role in municipal redevelopment is only to 
ensure that any such redevelopment in the Pinelands Area comports with 
the ... CMP ... adopted in accordance with the Pinelands Protection Act, 
N.J.S.A. 13:18A-1 et seq." According to the Oxford English Dictionary 
(2009), comport means to agree or endure, so redevelopment must coincide 
in all and any respect to the CMP. In implementation redevelopment does 
not agree (i.e., harmonize or accord) in all its respects with the CMP. 

4) THE STATE PLANNING ACT DOES NOT APPLY TO THE 
PINELANDS - Hartkopf (2010) noted that the State Planning Act (NJSA 
52:18A-196 et seq. ), which governs the SDRP, was "adopted by the State 
Legislature in 1985 in response to Mount Laurel II (Fair Housing Act, 

856 696-9759 
TELE P HO N E 

822 MAIN AVENUE VINELAND, NJ 08360-9346 
ADDRESS 

PAGE 2 



NJSA 52:27D-301 also passed in 1985) ..... [but] The State Planning Act 
does not apply (NJSA 52: l 8A-206) to lands within the federally designated 
Pinelands (see Pinelands Protection Act, NJSA 13:18A-23 et seq.)" Hence 
compliance with the Sate Plan is not a PC obligation, just as COAH 
requirements are not a PC obligation (also Kinsey, 2008: 4 & 6, P.L. 1987, 
c. 267; N.J.S.A. 13:18A-12.b. and-15). It is also worth noting that this also 
means the PC is not obligated to turn Pinelands Villages into sewered 
growth zones as suggested by Leaken (see Donio, 2011 ). 

5) REDEVELOPMENT IS INCHOATELY REVIEWED - The PC can at best 
provide a partial examination of a redevelopment plan, their role limited to 
portions that are covered under the CMP. Also, pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40A: 
12A-8b&c, which is cited as statute in current Pinelands redevelopment 
plans, a redevelopment plan cannot be effected until State approval (when 
the SPC makes a determination that a redevelopment parcel meets their 
standards of "land in need ofredevelopment)." Yet, as stated earlier in #4, 
the SPC (also DCA, OPA) has no jurisdiction over Pinelands 
redevelopment. Outside the Pinelands the State Planning Commission 
(SPC) reviews and endorses redevelopment plans, making 
recommendations to enhance plan efficiency and effectiveness to insure 
redevelopment implementation is consistent to Smart Growth plans under 
the State Development and Redevelopment Plan (Hartkopf, 2010). Again, 
there is a deficiency in that no one performs that function in the Pinelands. 

6) ONLY PC PLANS AND REGULATIONS CAN BE USED TO REACH 
SDRP OBJECTIVES -According to MOA (1999: 2, II. D) between the PC 
and SPC (also DCA, OPA), it was recognized that "the SPC will rely on the 
adopted plans and regulations of the PC to achieve the objectives of the 
SDRP." Redevelopment is a tool of the SPC, and not the PC. This is 
inconsistent with current MOA applicability, and is another reason that 
redevelopment should not be used in the PNR. 

D. This MOA acknowledges the statutory treatment of the New Jersey's 
Pinelands under the Pinelands Protection Act and the State Planning Act and 
recognizes that the SPC will rely on the adopted plans and regulations of the 
PC to achieve the objectives of the SDRP . 

(above) Excerpt from MOA (1999: 2). 

856 696-9759 
TELEPHONE 

822 MAIN AVENUE VINELAND, NJ 08360-9346 
ADDRESS 

PAGE 3 



7) REDEVELOPMENT LACKS OVERSIGHT - Additionally, there doesn't 
seem to be an entity that has oversight of Pin elands redevelopment law. PC 
plan endorsement only provides an illusion of due process. In actuality, 
State redevelopment statutes can be cited but then can be ignored with 
impunity within the PNR. For example I use Richland Village, where 
redevelopment was touted as "a prototype for the immediate region as well 
as the State" (Karabashian/Eddington Planning Group, 2006: 1 ). The 
Township began redevelopment at least two-years before the PC gave the 
municipality permission to move forward. In response to violations in State 
redevelopment statutes (e.g., issuance of bonds and accumulating real 
property before they had a plan), I tried to find an entity who had 
jurisdiction over Pinelands redevelopment. Not a single person could, or 
can, tell me where to go, including councils for the PC, the Department of 
Community Affairs (DCA), and the Local Finance Board (LFB). Examples 
of their responses are provided below: 

a - On multiple occasions the PC indicated they had no such authority; 

TI1c third reaSQn for your aooeal rc<.1uest is alle~ed deficiencies hv Buena Vista Townshin 
under the New .Jersey Loca l Redevelopment and Housing Law. The Pinelands Commission has 
no authority to enforce tbe requirement!: of thi!: law. The Commission's authority is limited to 
its enabling act, tl1c Pinclands Pruti:clion Act. The Executive Director's recommended approval 

(above) Excerpt from a letter by Pinelands Senior Counselor S. Roth to M. 
Demitroff denying his appeal to the Office of Administrative Law, May 12, 2010, 
even though I lived within 200-feet of the parcel in question and was not notified 
pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40:550-12. 

With respect to the question concerning the review and enforcement oflocal redevelopment and 
housing laws, the Executive Director would only submit that the Pwelands Comrmss1on s 
authority is limited to determinations of whether municipal redevelopment plans are consistent 
with the Pinelands Protection Act and the Comprehensive Management Plan. The Commission 
does not have the authoritv to review or enforce local redevelopment and housing laws. To the 

(above} Excerpt from CMP Policy & Implementation Committee Meeting, 
September 24, 2010. 

856 696-9759 
TELEPHONE 

822 MAIN AVENUE VINELAND, NJ 08360-9346 
ADDRESS 

PAGE 4 



Permitting, of this comment. Public Comment: Additional comments regarding "redevelopment 
lands" and authority of the Township Engineer to proceed with developing Sawmill Park were 

b / he commentor. Staff Res onse: These matters arc not re ulated b the Commission. 

(above) Excerpt from Pinelands Commission Report on an Application for Public 
Development, June 24, 2011. 

b - The DCA indicated it has no authority to review or enforce Pine/ands 
redevelopment mies; 

mart Growth was aware of six points relating to the . . . 

(above) Excerpt from DCA's Acting Executive Director, D. Rendeiro, Office of 
Smart Growth, response to M. Demitroff's query, October 1, 2009. 

c - The NJ LFB indicated it has no authority to review or enforce Pine/ands 
redevelopment mies; 

was secured, (or attempted to be secured). Please also be advised that the Board has no jurisdiction over 
th~ Pinelands Commission, the Local Redevelopment and Hou ing Law or the Municipal Land Use !.aw. 
It 1s suggested that you speak to a pnvate attorney concerning the possibility of filing civil acticn to 
represent your interests in a court oflaw. 

(above) Excerpt from NJLFB Chai r, T. Neff, response to M. Demitroff's query, 
February 28, 2011 . 

856 696-9759 
TELEPHONE 

822 MAIN AVENUE VINELAND, NJ 08360-9346 
ADDRESS 

PAGE 5 



SYNTHESIS 

Redevelopment is a powerful tool for the land-use planner, and it must be 
used wisely and fairly. The NJ State Comptroller recently expressed his 
concern about historical evidence of corruption of the redevelopment process 
(Boxer, 2010: 6, 13). Many redevelopment ordinances are written by the 
developer (Boxer, 2010: 16). Boxer indicated that more County and other 
officials should be "involved at earlier stages of the redevelopment process" 
and that there should be "fulsome public discussion" of redevelopment 
dynamics that goes beyond the "modicum of public notice" (Boxer, 2010: 22). 

Municipal land-use applications within the PNR cannot have less oversight 
and jurisdictional accountability than areas outside the Pinelands. As it stands, 
it appears that only the redeveloper (the municipality) is minding the hen
house (see #4- 7 above). Reforms are needed so that the mechanism properly 
fits the PC's mission to preserve, protect, and enhance the environmental and 
cultural environment of the Pinelands. Heed NJAPA's (2006) warning, that 
"planning professionals should exercise extreme caution when advising clients 
regarding redevelopment practices." Redevelopment can be rife with 
controversy (e.g., eminent domain). We, the Pinelands residents, are the PC's 
primary clients - not the developers, and the PC must fully safeguard our 
individual and societal rights, as well as the Pinelands cultural and 
environmental ecosystem. 

Redevelopment will in all likelihood be a preferred tool of targeted economic 
growth under PITF in the Pinelands. Yet for all the previous reasons stated 
above, redevelopment does not comport to the Pinelands Comprehensive 
Management Plan, and in extension cannot be invoked in the disbursement of 
PITF. A workable relationship between redevelopment and PITF must be 
addressed in the final Pinelands Infrastructure Master Plan, yet this 
component is conspicuously absent from this proposed amendment. 

856 696-9759 
TELEPHO N E 

822 MAIN AVENUE VINELAND, NJ 08360-9346 
ADDRESS 

PAGE 6 



INON-PINELANDSI PINELAND$ 

CONCLUSION 

Redevelopment cannot be used anywhere in the Pinelands, until it becomes 
abundantly clear which entity oversees and which entity enforces Pinelands 
redevelopment. Not even the Office of the Attorney General was able to 
resolve those issues (see attached). According to the CMP (7:50-1.4 
Applicability), "It shall be unlawful for any person to carry out any 
development in the Pinelands Area which does not conform to the minimum 
standards of this Plan." Redevelopment does not comport to the CMP (e.g., 
eminent domain). The 1999 MOA does not provide equal or greater protection 
to Pinelands resources, nor does it allow the use of non-PC land-use tools. 
This is important, since the PC, through the CMP, has effectively managed 
growth, while the SPC (also DCA, OPA) has not (Kinsey, 2008). While I am 
not an attorney, the "hole" story, one of less - not equal or greater protection, 
points out very real conflicting legal requirements that must be resolved. 

Sincerely. 

Mark Demitroff 

856 696-9759 
TELEPHONE 

822 MAIN AVENUE VINELAND , NJ 08360 - 9346 
AuDRE~s 

PAGE 7 



BIBLIOGRAPHY 

Boxer, A.M. (State Comptroller), 2010: A Programmatic Examination 
of Municipal Tax Abatements. Office of the State Comptroller, 
State of New Jersey, Trenton, NJ, 30 pp. 

Donio, G., 2011: Pinelands: sewer plants OK. The Hammonton 
Gazette. 15, 38: 1, 12, 16. 

Dow, P. (by K. Heinzerling), 2011 : Re: September 23, 2011 
Correspondence to the Office of the Attorney General. Letter from 
P, Dow to M. Demitroff, 2 pp. (added as addenda). 

Hartkopf, K. (Planning Director, Office of Smart Growth), 2010: The 
State Development and Redevelopment Plan: New Jersey Planning 
Law Review. PowerPoint presentation for the NJAPA, April 10, 
2010. 

Kinsey, D.N., 2008: Has the Mount Laurel doctrine delivered on Smart 
Growth? Planning & Environmental Law. 60, 6: 3- 9. 

MOA, (1999): Memorandum by and between the New Jersey 
Pinelands Commission and the New Jersey State Planning 
Commission. June 1, 1999. 11 pp. 

NJ APA, (New Jersey Chapter, American Planning Association), 2006: 

856 696-9759 
TELEP H O N E 

Position statement on redevelopment planning and exercise of 
eminent domain. c/o URS Corporation, One Gateway Center, Suite 
1000, Newark, NJ, 6 pp. 

8 22 MAIN AVENUE VINELAN D , NJ 08360 - 9346 
ADDRESS 

PAGE 8 



C'HRrs C11.i ·ng 
eu..~ ... 

Km G11Al)A(I 
LI. eo. ..... .,. 

State of ew Jers y 
Om f THE A'l'TOR.''f.\' Gii-"HllAL 

DEPARnlD'T OF l..4w AND Puauc SAFJ:TY 
01'1 10:. LAw 
25 M.wt1:r Sr.UT 

PO Box 003 
T"""'""'· NJ 08625·0093 

Nove er 23, 2011 

Via Regular • Certified Mail 
Ma k emitroff 
822 Main Av . 
Vineland, NJ 08360-9346 

P Al•LA T. Dow 
AtwntP)' <itMN:ll 

RoHt,K'l' M. H""1NA 
D<1Wk>1 

Re: September 23, 2011 Correspondence to he Office of 
the Attorney G ne l 

e r Mr . Dem1troff: 

I am in receipt ot your Sept mber 23, 2011 correspondence to 
the Office of the Attorney General. You asked for a dete.rmin tion 
as to "who has authority ov r redevelopment within the Pinelands 
National Reserve.• 

A noted in the Au ust 1 , 2011 correspondence sent to you by 
DAG Juli C vanag , this office i s unable o provide you with legal 
advice or ssis t ance. 

That being said, the New Jersey Constitu t ion au ho i:i:es 
redevelopment.. ~. ar . VIII , § Ill, 1. Municipal 
redevelopment is primarily governed by the New Jersey Local 
Redevelopment and Housin Law, N.J.S.A. 40A:l2A-l ~ QfilL_, which 
gives munici alities th authority to design te "ar~as i n need of 
redevelopment." N.J.S.A . 40A:l2A-5. The New Jersey Pinel nde 
Commission's ("Commission") role in municipal red velopmen is only 
to ensur har any such r developmen in the Pin lands Are 
comports with the Pinelands omprehenaive Management Plan ("CMP") 
adopted in accordance with the Pinelands Pr otection Act, N.J.S .A. 
13:18A-l -"..!;, ~ ~ N.J.A.C. 7:50 - 4.11 ~ ~ (developmen in 
munic pal i ties not certi f ied in compliance with t he CMP); N.J.A.C. 
7:50 - •!.31 ti ~ (developmen in munic i paliti<'e c rtifi d in 
compliance wi h the CMP). The Conunisoion has no authority to 
implement the New Jersey Loe 1 Redev lopmen and Housin Law. 

856 696-9759 
TELEP H O N E 

lh II Jt~I' 

822 MAIN AVENUE VINELAND , NJ 08360-9346 
ADDRESS 

PAGE 9 



November 23, 2011 
Page 2 

Fin lly, it should be cl rified that, since your letter asks 
who has uthority over redevel opment in the "Pinelands National 
Reserve.~ the Commission's au hority is l imited to the ~Pinelands 
Are •as defined y N.J.S.A. 13 : 18A- ll. See~ N.J.S.A. 13:18A-3 ; 
N.J.S.A. 13:18A· 8. Although he CMP cons i ut s th m n gem nt p l an 
c lled for by the Nationa l Parks and Recreation Ac o f 1978, 16 
]J,S.C, §47li(f), th Commission's jurisdiction le limited o those 
por ions of t e Pinelands National Reserve that overlap with the 
Pi elands Arca. The New Jersey De tmcn of F.nvironmental 
Protection has primary juri.Qdiction over t hose port ions of the 
Pjnel nds Nation l Reserve loco ed outside the Pinel nds Area 
within the Co stal l>.rea. See N.J.S.A. 13:18A-23 nd N.J.A.C. 7:7E-
3.44 w ich provid s that K(w]1lhin the Pinel nds National Reserv, 
the Pine ands Commission will nerve as a reviewin ag ncy for the 
coas l co s uction permit applications.# 

C: AAO Kevi n Aucrbacher 
AAG Robert H. Stoloff 
DAG John Renella 
DAG Chr~etine Piatek 

856 696 - 9759 
TELEPHONE 

Sincerely yours, 

PAULA T. DOW 
ATI'ORNEY GENERAL OP NEW JERSEY 

By:..Ll<._.,."-'-~,.:,,.,..-.:...-""",..--M':-:-=---\~~~ 
Kristen 0. Heinz li 9 
Depu y A torn y Gener 

822 MAIN AVENUE VINELAND , NJ 08360-9346 
ADDRESS 

PAGE 10 



1

Piner, Betsy

From: Ian Borden P.P., AICP <iborden@pds-nj.com>

Sent: Wednesday, January 02, 2019 10:49 AM

To: Planning, PC

Subject: Planning and Conformance Submissions

Below is the result of your feedback form.  It was submitted by Ian Borden P.P., AICP (iborden@pds-nj.com) on 
Wednesday, January 2, 2019 at 10:49:12 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

email: iborden@pds-nj.com 

subject: Planning and Conformance Submissions 

print_blank_fields: 1 

Name: Ian Borden P.P., AICP 

Affiliation: Professional Design Services LLC 

Mailing Address: 1245 Airport Road Lakewood NJ 08701 

Phone Number: 7323630060 

Message: We represent a number of landowners and developers seeking to development areas within the Regional 
Growth Zone of Manchester and Jackson Townships, which developments will require the purchase of PDC's. The 
absence of public water and sewer facilities have hindered the growth of these areas. Please accept these comments in 
support of the PITF Master Plan Amendment, including the proposed funding structure.  

Submit: Submit 

--------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

Pinelands Infrastructure Trust Fund
Master Plan Amendment
January 2019   Exhibit #2



Pinelands Infrastructure Trust Fund
Master Plan Amendment
         January 2019   Exhibit #3





Manchester Township 
1 Colonial Drive •Manchester, NJ 08759 •(732)657-8121 

Department of Public Works 

Albert Yodakis, PE, PP, CPWM Kenneth T. Palmer 

Director of Public Works Mayor 

www.manchestertwp.com 

January 4, 2018 

Nancy Wittenberg, Executive Director 

The Pinelands Commission 

15 Springfield Road 

PO Box 359 

New Lisbon, NJ  08064 

Re: Pinelands Infrastructure Trust Master Plan Amendment 

Letter of Support 

Dear Director Wittenberg: 

I have received and reviewed a copy of the draft amendment to the 

funding allocation and ranking criteria for the Pinelands 

Infrastructure Trust Master Plan. Please accept this letter as our 

support of the proposed amendment and financing structure. 

The Township is of the opinion that the outlined financing structure 

will allow municipalities to utilize the proposed funds to complete 

meaningful projects which will have a positive impact on the 

Pinelands. 

If you have any questions regarding this matter or require any 

additional specifics to support the township’s position, please to 

not hesitate to contact me. 

Very truly yours, 

Albert Yodakis, PE, PP, CME, CPWM 

Director of Public Works 

Pinelands Infrastructure Trust Fund
Master Plan Amendment
January 2019   Exhibit #4



1

Berg, Gina

From: Berg, Gina

Sent: Monday, January 07, 2019 4:03 PM

To: Grogan, Susan; Piner, Betsy; Liggett, Larry

Cc: Wengrowski, Ed

Subject: FW: Pinelands Infrastructure Trust Fund

From: David Harpell [mailto:dharpell@jacksonmua.com]  

Sent: Monday, January 07, 2019 3:58 PM 
To: Berg, Gina 

Subject: [EXTERNAL] RE: Pinelands Infrastructure Trust Fund 

Gina, 

I apologize that we did not testify or provide comments earlier on the Pinelands Infrastructure Trust Master Plan 

Amendment.  As we have previously relayed, Jackson MUA is fully supportive of any infrastructure financing that will 

support the Pinelands Infrastructure Master Plan and the timing of this program is very fortuitous as the NJ I-Bank has 

limited resources and water and sewer utilities are dealing with many new regulatory mandates including the Water 

Quality Accountability Act.  In short, these funding issues will very likely prevent extending utilities in the Pinelands 

Regional Growth Areas without a program such as the Pinelands Infrastructure Trust Fund.  I personally think the ranking 

criteria seems reasonable and would like to keep the local match in the 10% range with more points provided for a 

higher local match. 

In short, I think a program such as this is both reasonable and necessary to meet your infrastructure goals. 

Respectfully, 

David Harpell 

Executive Director 

Jackson Township MUA 

(732)928-2222 x240  

From: Berg, Gina [mailto:Gina.Berg@pinelands.nj.gov] 

Sent: Thursday, August 30, 2018 9:29 AM 

To: David Harpell 
Subject: Pinelands Infrastructure Trust Fund 

Good Morning, 

The Pinelands Commission is seeking input regarding potential projects that might qualify for funding through the 

Pinelands Infrastructure Trust Fund.  Attached is a copy of our letter that requests input about infrastructure needs and 

gives a brief description of the funding to be made available for projects that support any Pinelands Regional Growth 

management area.  If you have any questions or if you would like to schedule a meeting to discuss potential 

infrastructure projects and the Pinelands Infrastructure Trust Fund, please contact me via e-mail or through the phone 

number below.   

Gina Berg 

Resource Planner 

Pinelands Infrastructure Trust Fund 
Master Plan Amendment
January 2019   Exhibit #5



2

NJ Pinelands Commission 

(609) 894-7300 ext. 136 



January 2019 

 

 

 

 

 
PINELANDS INFRASTRUCTURE TRUST MASTER PLAN AMENDMENT 

PROJECT RANKING CRITERIA AND FUNDING STRUCTURE 

JANUARY 2019 

 

  



January 2019 

2 

 

Table of Contents 
Overview ......................................................................................................................................... 3 

Objectives ....................................................................................................................................... 4 

Ranking Criteria .............................................................................................................................. 5 

Mandatory Requirements ............................................................................................................ 5 

Bonus Factors.............................................................................................................................. 6 

Financing Structure ......................................................................................................................... 6 

Outline for Project Funding Applications ....................................................................................... 7 

Appendix I. Application Form ........................................................................................................ 8 

 

 

 

 

  



January 2019 

3 

 

Overview  
 

The Pinelands Infrastructure Fund (PITF) was established in 1985 to help local governments and 

utility authorities defray the costs associated with supporting the population and economic 

growth targeted to Pinelands Regional Growth Areas. The Pinelands Infrastructure Bond Act 

became law on August 23, 1985. Voters subsequently approved a bond issue that allowed $30 

million to fund the PITF. The funds are disbursed through grants and loans for certain types of 

infrastructure projects that serve the needs of Pinelands Regional Growth Areas. The types of 

infrastructure that may be funded pursuant to the Act include wastewater treatment and 

collection systems, stormwater management facilities, water supply systems, and transportation 

projects. To date, only wastewater projects have been funded.  

 

The Pinelands Commission prepared the original Pinelands Infrastructure Master Plan as 

required by the PITF Act. The Infrastructure Master Plan accomplished three things. First, it 

delineated a funding structure for loans, grants, and local matching funds (40%, 40%, and 20%, 

respectively). Second, it created a ranking system by which proposed infrastructure projects 

would be judged for funding eligibility. Third, it generated the list of projects that were deemed 

eligible for the initial round of funding. Projects proposed for funding must first be approved by 

the Pinelands Commission and are then forwarded to the State Infrastructure Bank for processing 

and legislative approval. 

 

At this time, the repayment of loans from earlier funding rounds has replenished the PITF and 

there is approximately $15 million available to disburse as loans or grants.  In July 2018, 

Commission staff reviewed the program with the CMP Policy & Implementation Committee.  

Subsequently, the Commission staff reached out via mail, e-mail, web notice, telephone and in-

person meetings with local officials and utility authorities to gauge the infrastructure needs of the 

Regional Growth Areas.  Commission staff has also been working to create a new set of ranking 

criteria by which to evaluate any applications for funding.   

 

The new ranking criteria and funding structure are the subjects of this proposed PITF Master 

Plan amendment.  A future amendment will be prepared to incorporate the list of projects 

recommended for funding.  Following review of this proposed amendment by the Policy & 

Implementation Committee, a public hearing must be held regarding the amendment.  Then, the 

proposal will return to the Committee for a recommendation to forward it on to the Commission 

for approval.  The amended Master Plan should then be submitted to the Department of 

Environmental Protection for updating any regulations for consistency with the Water Bank 

(formerly Environmental Infrastructure Trust) process.   

 

Following adoption of this amendment to the Pinelands Infrastructure Master Plan, the 

Commission will then announce a Request for Proposals to solicit applications for project 



January 2019 

4 

 

funding.  Submitted applications will be ranked by staff and reviewed by the Policy & 

Implementation Committee.  Subsequently, a second Master Plan amendment will be prepared.  

The second amendment will revise the funding structure, if necessary, and it will include the list 

of projects to be funded.  The second amendment will then proceed through the same route of 

public hearing, committee review, formal Commission action and submittal to the Water Bank.  

The list of projects identified in the second Master Plan amendment is intended to proceed 

through legislative adoption as part of the overall Intended Use Plan prepared by the Water Bank 

for SFY2020.   

 

Objectives 
 

The purpose of this Pinelands Infrastructure Trust Master Plan amendment is twofold.  First, it 

proposes to create a new set of ranking criteria for evaluating projects involving wastewater, 

water supply or transportation to serve the needs of the Pinelands Regional Growth Areas.  

Second, it proposes a new funding structure to disburse available funds from the Pinelands 

Infrastructure Trust. The ranking criteria offer an objective means for comparing the relative 

value of an array of infrastructure projects against goals related to the Pinelands Comprehensive 

Management Plan and to the Pinelands Infrastructure Bond Act.  Specifically, the project must 

serve development in the Pinelands Regional Growth Areas and any facilities must be located in 

or serve the Pinelands Area.   

 

The ranking criteria are also intended to measure projects alongside community needs and 

environmental objectives.  Funding will only be awarded to wastewater (including stormwater 

and green infrastructure), transportation, or water supply projects.  The proposed funding 

structure will require that a portion of the funds be disbursed funds as loans.  That structure will 

allow future funding rounds to be made available as loans are fully repaid. 

 

In addition, the Pinelands Infrastructure Act was intended to enhance the environmental 

objective of land preservation and value equity through the Pinelands Development Credit (PDC) 

program.  Therefore, any project that receives PITF funding in this round must support new 

residential development or redevelopment that will need PDCs to be completed.  A higher 

potential for PDC use will result in a higher ranking score. 

 

The remaining objectives of the funding are reflected in the ranking criteria and include 

consideration of project cost per residential unit, environmental enhancements, and Kirkwood-

Cohansey aquifer benefits. 

 



January 2019 

5 

 

Ranking Criteria 
 

There are two categories of ranking criteria:  mandatory requirements and bonus factors.  

Mandatory requirements allow any project to earn up to 100 points.  Up to an additional 70 

points can be earned for bonus factors.  Please see the ranking criteria, below. 

 

Mandatory Requirements  

 

All projects must provide service to a Regional Growth Area.  Only infrastructure that allows 

new residential or mixed use development and redevelopment will be considered.  Only project 

costs associated with facilities and infrastructure inside the Pinelands Area will be eligible for 

funding.  A project may be awarded up to 100 points on mandatory requirements. 

 

1. Level of Service (40 points) 

Number of new dwelling units potentially served based on municipal zoning. Higher number of 

total units will result in greater points awarded.   

25 -50 residential units = 5 points 

50 - 100 residential units = 10 points 

100 - 200 residential units = 15 points  

200 - 300 units = 20 points  

300 – 400 units = 25 points 

400 – 500 units = 30 points 

Greater than 500 units = 40 points 

 

2. Potential for PDC use - based on certified municipal zoning (40 points) 

The project may serve areas where PDC use is optional or mandatory.  Mandatory use is granted 

additional points in bonus factors.  Potential use of greater numbers of PDCs increases awarded 

points.  

5 PDCs (20 rights) = 5 points for voluntary use; 10 points for mandatory use 

7.5 PDCs (30 rights) = 7 points for voluntary use; 15 points for mandatory use 

10 PDCs (40 rights) = 10 points for voluntary use; 20 points for mandatory use 

12.5 PDCs (50 rights) = 12 points for voluntary use; 25 points for mandatory use 

15 PDCs (60 rights) = 15 points for voluntary use; 30 points for mandatory use 

Greater than 15 PDCs (>60 rights) = 20 points; 40 points for mandatory use 

 

3. Local matching funds (20 points) 

Not less than 10% of project funding must come from non-PITF sources, unless a hardship exists 

and the project otherwise is highly ranked. 

10% - 25% match = 7 points 

26% - 40% match = 14 points 



January 2019 

6 

 

Greater than 41% match = 20 points 

 

Bonus Factors  

 
No more than 70 points total will be awarded for these bonus factors.  Each factor may be 

awarded up to 10 points.   

 

1. Development meets EPA Water Sense standards 

2. Best Management Practice enhanced stormwater techniques and green infrastructure that 

exceeds current Pinelands Comprehensive Management Plan regulations 

3. Water supply for development is from a non-Kirkwood/Cohansey water source 

4. Project recharges wastewater to groundwater 

5. Lower cost per dwelling unit in PITF funding 

6. Serves areas where the certified municipal zoning ordinance mandates use of PDCs for at 

least 16.7% of the market rate units in any residential project  

7. Serves areas zoned for residential development at a net density of at least 3.7 units per acre 

Financing Structure 
 

According to the Pinelands Infrastructure Trust Act, the Infrastructure Master Plan sets the 

funding structure which may be amended periodically.  When the funding structure includes a 

portion of the award to be disbursed as loan(s), the Act requires that the interest rate will not 

“exceed 50% of the average interest rate of the Bond Buyer Municipal Bond Index for bonds 

available for purchase during the last 26 weeks preceding approval of the loan….”  Terms of the 

loan or grant agreement shall be specified by the State Treasurer.   

 

The Act limits project costs that would be eligible for award to those remaining after deducting 

any Federal contribution. The Act indicates that the following costs may be included in the 

project award: 

 Acquisition and development of real estate for use in connection with the project 

 Execution of agreements or franchises  

 Procurement of engineering, inspection, planning, legal, financial or other 

professional services 

 Administrative, organizational or operating expenses incident to the authorized 

project 

 Establishment of working capital  

 

The Pinelands Infrastructure Master Plan financing structure for disbursal of the loans and grants 

will be amended as follows: 



January 2019 

7 

 

 

1. The portion awarded as loans will be 50% of the total project award.   

2. The portion awarded as grants will be 40% of the total project award. 

3. A local match of 10% of the total project award will be required.  In cases where a hardship 

has been identified, the local match may be waived and the award will be allocated as 50% 

loan and 50% grants.  

4. Loans will carry an interest rate of 1%. 

Outline for Project Funding Applications 
 

I. Application form 

a. See attached form 

b. Project Map (all maps must also be submitted in GIS formats) 

i. Facility and infrastructure location 

ii. Zoning district boundaries 

iii. Development to be served boundary 

iv. Pinelands Management Area boundaries 

v. Municipal Boundaries 

vi. Scale 

vii. Compass Rose 

II. Detailed Proposal 

a. Facilities, System and Service Area Description 

b. Block and lot numbers, if applicable 

c. Municipal Zoning Districts to be served 

d. PDC Use – total number of residential units to be served (subject to verification) 

i. Number of units expected as PDC units 

ii. Assurance of PDC use where voluntary 

e. Municipal/Regional Benefits (for example, where the project will correct an 

existing problem or support redevelopment of an area) 

f. Best Management Practices, Conservation, or Environmental Design Elements of 

Project 

g. Costs – including a statement of the local or non-PITF funding match for the 

project and a statement of Federal funding associated with the project 

h. Governing body resolution indicating intent to provide local match 

i. Project Schedule 

 

 

 

 

 



January 2019 

8 

 

Appendix I. Application Form 
 

I. Applicant Information 

Applicant Name 

___________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Applicant Address 

___________________________________________________________________________

___________________________________________________________________________

___________________________________________________________________________ 

Contact Name and Address 

___________________________________________________________________________

___________________________________________________________________________

___________________________________________________________________________

___________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Contact Phone Number 

___________________________________________________________________________ 

 

II. Costs and Financing 

 

Estimated Total Project Cost ___________________________________________________ 

 

Local Match Funds___________________________________________________________ 

 

Federal Funds_______________________________________________________________ 

 

PITF Funding Assistance Requested _____________________________________________ 

 

III. Detailed Proposal  

Attach project description and map as described in “Outline for Project Funding 

Applications” 

IV. Resolution of the Governing Body 

Attach a copy of the adopted resolution authorizing application and assigning the 

point of contact 

 

 

 

 



MEMORANDUM

To:  Members of the Pinelands Commission 

From:  Susan R. Grogan 
  Chief Planner 

Date:  January 30, 2019 

Subject: No Substantial Issue Findings 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

During the past month, we reviewed 16 master plan and ordinance amendments that we found to raise 
no substantial issues with respect to the standards of the Pinelands Comprehensive Management Plan. 
These amendments were:  

Egg Harbor City Ordinance 15-2018 - adopts a Redevelopment Plan for the 600 White Horse Pike 
Rehabilitation Area. The Rehabilitation Area is approximately 3.4 acres, encompassing five lots, and is 
located entirely within a Pinelands Town. Permitted uses in the new Rehabilitation Area are limited to 
convenience stores with fueling stations, fast food restaurants, retail, car washes, medical offices and 
banks.    

Egg Harbor Township Planning Board Resolution HE/FS 01-18 - adopts the 2018 Housing Element 
and Fair Share Plan as part of the Township’s Master Plan. The Housing Element contains updated data 
and analyses pertaining to the Township’s current and projected demographics, housing stock, and 

employment. The Township’s Fair Share Plan, covering the cumulative period 1987-2025, indicates: a 
rehabilitation obligation of 91 units; a prior round obligation of 763 units; and a third round prospective 
need of 1,000 units. The Fair Share Plan also provides information on past efforts to provide affordable 
housing and mechanisms that will facilitate the attainment of the Township’s affordable housing 
obligation.  

Egg Harbor Township Ordinance 51-2018 - implements the Township’s 2018 Housing Element and 

Fair Share Plan by repealing and replacing in its entirety Chapter 57 (Affordable Housing) of the 
Township’s Code. The amended Chapter 57 contains provisions related to monitoring and reporting 
requirements, programs for the rehabilitation of existing residential units, design requirements for new 
affordable housing construction, affordable unit controls and requirements, administration of the 
municipality affordable housing program and an affirmative marketing plan. 



2 

 

Evesham Township Planning Board Resolution 18-15 - adopts the Township’s 2018 Housing 

Element and Fair Share Plan. The Housing Element contains updated data and analysis on the 

Township’s current and projected demographic, housing stock, and employment characteristics. The 

Fair Share Plan covers the cumulative period 1987-2025 and indicates a rehabilitation obligation of 94 

units, a prior round obligation of 534 units and a third round prospective need of 680 units. The Fair 

Share Plan also provides information on past efforts to provide affordable housing, mechanisms that will 

facilitate the attainment of the Township’s affordable housing obligation, and a spending plan for 

collected development fees. 

 

Evesham Township Ordinance 25-12-2018 - amends Chapter 161 (Zoning Modifications and 

Additional Requirements) of the Township’s Code. In particular, the Ordinance replaces Section 161-2, 

Requirements for Low- and Moderate-Income Housing, in its entirety. The new section includes a 

mandatory affordable housing set-aside requirement for approved development with a gross density of 6 

residential units per acre or more. The ordinance also includes provisions related to monitoring and 

reporting requirements, design requirements for new affordable housing construction, affordable unit 

controls and requirements, administration of the municipality’s affordable housing program and an 

affirmative marketing plan. 

 

Manchester Township Ordinance 18-34 - amends Chapter 245 (Land Use and Development) of the 

Township’s Code in response to amendments to the CMP. These amendments include revisions to 
definitions, types of development exempt from application to the Commission, notice requirements and 

installation of advanced wastewater treatment systems. 

 

Medford Lakes Borough Ordinance 657 - amends Chapter 145 (Land Development) of the Borough’s 

Code in response to amendments to the CMP. These amendments include revisions to definitions, types 

of development exempt from application to the Commission, notice requirements and installation of 

advanced wastewater treatment systems. 

 

Stafford Township Ordinances 2018-23 and 2018-29 - amend Chapter 130 (Land Use and 

Development) of the Township’s Code by revising landscaping standards. Ordinance 2018-23 eliminates 

benches as site furnishing that the board of jurisdiction may require as part of a site plan. Ordinance 

2018-29 revises various provisions that specify tree type and the rate at which trees shall be planted as 

part of new development. 

 

Stafford Township Ordinances 2018-24 and 2018-26 - amend Chapter 211 (Zoning) of the 

Township’s Code by revising setback requirements applicable to the Mixed Use (MU) Zone and Low-

Density Rural Residential (RA-4) Zone. The MU and RA-4 Zones are located entirely outside of the 

Pinelands Area, but within that portion of the municipality designated as a Regional Growth Area in the 

Pinelands National Reserve.  

 

Stafford Township Ordinance 2018-28 - amends Chapter 211 (Zoning) of the Township’s Code in 

response to amendments to the CMP. These amendments include revisions to definitions, types of 

development exempt from application to the Commission, notice requirements and installation of advanced 

wastewater treatment systems. 

 

Stafford Township Ordinances 2018-31 - amends Chapter 194 (Trees) of the Township’s Code by 

revising provisions related to tree removal plans, reforestation, tree replacement requirements, waivers 

from Chapter 194 and the Township Tree Fund. Chapter 194 is applicable only to those areas of the 

Township outside of the Pinelands Area.  



3 

 

 

Upper Township Planning Board Resolution 05-2018 – adopts the Township’s 2018 Master Plan 

Reexamination Report Amendment that includes necessary updates to ensure consistency between the 

2018 Reexamination Report and 2018 Housing Element and Fair Share Plan. The amendment includes 

recommended revisions to the Township’s land development ordinance to facilitate the development of 

two previously approved developments known as Hidden Pond and Heritage Link as well as the 

development of a senior rental apartment development on a 58 acre tract on Stagecoach Road. These 

three tracts are outside of the Pinelands Area, but within the Pinelands National Reserve. 

 

Upper Township Ordinance 019-2018 – amends Chapter XX (Zoning) of the Township’s Code to 

implement the 2018 Master Plan Reexamination Report Amendment. Ordinance 019-2018 establishes a 

new Affordable Senior Housing (ASH) Zone and adopts an amended zoning map delineating the new 

zone. The ordinance also specifies affordable housing provisions that must be met for Adult Retirement 

Communities, and eliminates Adult Retirement Communities as a conditional use in the Town Center 

(TC) Zone and Town Center Core (TCC) Zone. The ASH, TC, and TCC zones are located entirely 

outside of the Pinelands Area, but within the Regional Growth Area of the Pinelands National Reserve. 

 

Wrightstown Borough Ordinance 2018-09 - amends Chapter 219 (Zoning and Land Use 

Development) of the Borough’s Code in response to amendments to the CMP. These amendments 

include revisions to definitions, types of development exempt from application to the Commission and 

notice requirements. 

 

 

 


	Packet Summary Memo
	Attachments to the Minutes

	Agenda
	Approval of the January 11, 2019 Meeting Minutes
	Attachments to the Minutes
	Resolution - Approving With Conditions an Application for Public Development (App. No. 2015-0066.003)
	Resolution - Approving With Conditions an Application for Public Development (App. No. 2018-0098.001)
	Resolution - Approving With Conditions an Application for an Amended Waiver of Strict Compliance (App. No. 1987-0127.001)
	Letters of Interpretation (LOIs)
	LOI No. 2169 (PDCs)
	LOI No. 2179 (PDCs)

	List of Pending Public Development and Waiver of Strict Compliance Applications accepting public comment at the February 8, 2019 Commission Meeting
	Resolution - Issuing an Order to Certify Ordinance 2018-19, Amending Chapter 211 (Zoning) of the Code of Stafford Township
	Resolution - Issuing an Order to Certify Winslow Township Ordinance 0-2018-025, Adopting the Maressa Redevelopment Plan 
	Resolution - To Adopt an Amendment to the Pinelands Infrastructure Master Plan
	Memorandum - No Substantial Issue Findings



